A REGULAR MEETING OF THE

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LADYSMITH

TO BE HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT CITY HALLON
MONDAY, JULY 16,2018

7:00 P.M.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER(7:00P.M.)

1. AGENDA APPROVAL

2. MINUTES
2.1. Minutes of the Special Meeting and Workshop of Council held June 25,
2018 1-2
2.2. Minutes of the Special Meeting and Workshop of Council held June 28,
2018 3-4
2.3. Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held July 9,2018 5-9

3. DELEGATION

3.1. Alex Stuart and Mike Hooper, Nanaimo Airport Commission
Nanaimo Airport Project Update

4. PROPERTY MAINTENANCE MATTER: 317 DOGWOOD DRIVE

4.1. Report - R. MacNair, Bylaw Compliance Officer 10-15

4.2. Hearing

Staff Recommendation:

That Council:

1. Hear the representation from the Owners and/or Occupier of 317
Dogwood Drive.

2. Consider directing staff to issue a Notice to the Owners of the property,
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situated at 317 Dogwood Drive, Ladysmith, BC (legally described as Lot
24, District Lot 56, Oyster District, Plan 956A lying to the North West of a
boundary equidistant between the North Westerly and South Easterly
boundaries of said lot) to clean up the unsightly accumulation on the
property and remove the unlicensed vehicles, refuse, discarded material,
overgrown grass and weeds within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of the
Notice to do so, pursuant to the provisions of the “Town of Ladysmith
Property Maintenance Bylaw 2015, No. 1894.”

Authorize the work to be carried out by the Town or its contractors, if the
Owner is in default of such removal being undertaken within twenty-one
(21) days of receipt of Notice to do so, and the expense charged to the
Owner of the property. If unpaid on December 31°% in the year in which
the work is done, the expenses shall be added to and form part of the
taxes payable on that real property as taxes in arrears.

5. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

5.1

5.2.

Coach House Intensive Residential Development Permit Application-
332 Warren Street (Gary Sayers, GMS Contracting)
Subject Property: Lot 9, Block 79 of an unnumbered portion of Oyster

District, Plan 703A

Staff Recommendation:

That Council:

1.

Issue Development Permit 3060-18-05 to permit the issuance of a
building permit for the construction of a coach house dwelling on Lot 9,
Block 79 of an unnumbered portion of Oyster District, Plan 703A (332
Warren Street); and

Authorize the Mayor and Corporate Officer to sign the Development
Permit.

Temporary Use Permit Application - 941 Oyster Bay Drive (GlenCar
Consultants)

Subject Property: Lot B, District Lot 24, Oyster District, Plan VIP83303

Staff Recommendation:

That Council:

1.

Consider issuing Temporary Use Permit 3340-18-01 to allow an applicant
to obtain the necessary permits to locate a mobile home for residential
use at 941 Oyster Bay Drive (Lot B, District Lot 24, Oyster District, Plan
VIP83303) for three years with one renewal, subject to the conditions of
the Temporary Use Permit; and

Authorize the Mayor and Corporate Officer to sign Temporary Use
Permit 3340-18-01.

16-23

24-28



Council Agenda - Monday, July 16,2018

5.3.

Riparian Development Permit Application - 10910 Westdowne Road (Van
Isle Storage Ltd.)
Subject Property: Lot B, District Lot 72, Oyster District, Plan EPP20506......... 29-37

Staff Recommendation:

That Council:

1. Issue Development Permit 3060-18-06 to permit land clearing and
riparian restoration on Lot B, District Lot 72, Oyster District, Plan
EPP20506 (10910 Westdowne Road); and

2. Authorize the Mayor and Corporate Officer to sign Development Permit
3060-18-06.

6. BYLAWS - OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN AND ZONING - none

7. REPORTS

7.1.

Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report 38-128

Staff Recommendation:
That Council approve the Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report.

7.2. Community Public Arts Strategy 129-131
Staff Recommendation:
That Council authorize the awarding of the contract to the Ladysmith Arts
Council for the development of a Community Public Arts Strategy for the
Town of Ladysmith.

7.3. 2018 Outstanding Business Licences 132-133
Staff Recommendation:
That Council receive for information purposes the listing of outstanding
Business Licenses for 2018.

8. BYLAWS
8.1. Town of Ladysmith Fees and Charges Bylaw 2008, No. 1644, Amendment

Bylaw 2018, No. 1969 134-136

The purpose of Bylaw 1969 is to update some fees and provide further
clarification of some of the current charges.
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Staff Recommendation:
That Council adopt “Town of Ladysmith Fees and Charges Bylaw 2008, No.
1644, Amendment Bylaw 2018, No.1969".

9. CORRESPONDENCE

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

Cowichan Valley Regional District
Island Corridor Foundation Licence of Occupation for Trail and Municipal
Infrastructure 137 -159

Staff Recommendation:

That Council endorse the Cowichan Valley Regional District’s Licence
of Occupation agreement with Island Corridor Foundation and agree
to be a signatory.

Cowichan Valley Regional District
Cowichan 2050: Request for Endorsement 160-162

Staff Recommendation:
That Council endorse the Cowichan 2050 regional planning framework.

Cathy Peters, BC Anti-Human Trafficking Advocate
Request for a Letter of Support 163 -165

Staff Recommendation:

That Council send a letter to the Union of British Columbia Municipalities
(UBCM) supporting the request by Cathy Peters in her correspondence dated
June 26, 2018, to deliver a presentation regarding BC Child Sex Trafficking at
the UBCM annual convention in Whistler, September 10-14, 2018

Ladysmith Lions Club
Request for Signage at Little League Baseball Park 166 - 167

Staff Recommendation:

That Council approve the installation of the proposed sign at the Little League
baseball park on High Street, as requested by the Ladysmith Lions Club in
their correspondence dated July 4, 2018.

Ladysmith Chamber of Commerce
Request for Letter of Support 168 - 198

Staff Recommendation:
That Council:




Council Agenda - Monday, July 16,2018

1. Provide a letter of support for the Ladysmith Chamber of Commerce to
accompany their application for funding to ICET for a walking tour
application for smartphones; and

2. Direct staff to work with the Ladysmith Chamber of Commerce to
determine an appropriate contribution to the initiative of not more than
$10,000, with the funds to come from the Tourism budget.

10. NEW BUSINESS

10.1. Logger Sport Poles at Ladysmith Amphitheatre

Staff Recommendation:

That Council:

1. Accept with gratitude the proposed donation by Otter Point Timber of the
value of two new poles for logger sports at the Transfer Beach
Amphitheatre for a value of $9,260.

2. Approve the removal of the existing logger sport poles and installation of
the new poles at the Transfer Beach Amphitheatre for a total up to $2,000
plus applicable taxes, with funds to come from surplus; and

3. Direct staff to amend the Financial Plan accordingly

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

11.1. Sonic the Hedgehog Movie (report to be circulated separately)

QUESTION PERIOD

A maximum of 15 minutes is allotted for questions.

Persons wishing to address Council during “Question Period” must be Town of
Ladysmith residents, non-resident property owners, or operators of a business.
Individuals must state their name and address for identification purposes.
Questions put forth must be on topics which are not normally dealt with by
Town staff as a matter of routine.

Questions must be brief and to the point.

Questions shall be addressed through the Chair and answers given likewise.
Debates with or by individual Council members or staff members are not
allowed.

No commitments shall be made by the Chair in replying to a question. Matters
which may require action of the Council shall be referred to a future meeting of
the Council.

ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING & WORKSHOP OF COUNCIL

MONDAY, JUNE 25,2018
CALL TO ORDER 5:03 P.M.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Aaron Stone Councillor Steve Arnett Councillor Cal Fradin
Councillor Joe Friesenhan Councillor Rob Hutchins Councillor Duck Paterson

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:
Councillor Carol Henderson

STAFF PRESENT:
Guillermo Ferrero Felicity Adams Erin Anderson
Geoff Goodall Joanna Winter
GUESTS PRESENT:
Sherry Hurst, Leftside Partners Inc.
CALLTO ORDER Mayor Stone called this Special Meeting of Council to order at 5:03
p.m.
AGENDA APPROVAL
Moved and seconded:
CS 2018-218 That Council approve the agenda for this Special Meeting and
Workshop of Council for Monday, June 25, 2018.
Motion carried.
PRESENTATION Development Cost Charges Review 2018 - Part One

AND DISCUSSION

Staff and the consultant gave a presentation regarding the
Development Cost Charges program and reviewed the proposed
DCC program with a list of DCC-eligible projects currently

contemplated.

Staff responded to questions from Council.

ADJOURNMENT
Moved and seconded:
CS 2018-219 That this Special Meeting of Council adjourn at 6:20 p.m.
Motion carried.



CERTIFIED CORRECT: Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (J. Winter)



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING & WORKSHOP OF COUNCIL

THURSDAY, JUNE 28, 2018
CALL TO ORDER 5:04 P.M.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:

Mayor Aaron Stone

Councillor Joe Friesenhan

Councillor Steve Arnett Councillor Cal Fradin
Councillor Duck Paterson

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:

Councillor Carol Henderson

STAFF PRESENT:
Guillermo Ferrero
Geoff Goodall

GUESTS PRESENT:

Councillor Rob Hutchins

Felicity Adams Erin Anderson
Joanna Winter

Sherry Hurst, Leftside Partners Inc.

CALL TO ORDER

CLOSED SESSION

CS2018-239

RISE AND REPORT
AGENDA APPROVAL

CS2018-240

PRESENTATION
AND DISCUSSION

Mayor Stone called this Special Meeting of Council to order at 5:04
p.m.

Moved and seconded:

That Council retire into closed session at 5:05 p.m. in order to hold
a workshop on solid waste management in accordance with section
90(1)(k) of the Community Charter (discussions related to the
proposed provision of a municipal service).

Council rose from Closed Session at 6:15 p.m. without report.
Moved and seconded:

That Council approve the agenda for this Special Meeting and
Workshop of Council for Thursday, June 28, 2018.

Motion carried.

Development Cost Charges Review 2018 - Part Two

Staff gave a presentation regarding the Development Cost Charges



program and reviewed the proposed municipal assist and benefit
factors for the program.

Staff responded to questions from Council.

Moved and seconded:

That the small lot Development Cost Charges exemption be
removed.

Motion carried.

Moved and seconded:

That council direct staff to draft a development cost charges
program with a charge between $18,000 and $22,000 per single
family lot, and vary the Municipal Assist Factor to achieve this rate.

Motion carried.
ADJOURNMENT
Moved and seconded:
CS 2018-241 That this Special Meeting of Council adjourn at 6:20 p.m.
Motion carried.
CERTIFIED CORRECT: Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (J. Winter)



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL

MONDAY, JULY 9,2018
CALL TO ORDER 5:01 P.M.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:

Mayor Aaron Stone Councillor Steve Arnett Councillor Cal Fradin
Councillor Joe Friesenhan Councillor Carol Henderson Councillor Rob Hutchins
Councillor Duck Paterson

STAFF PRESENT:
Clayton Postings (Acting Chief Administrative Officer) Felicity Adams
Erin Anderson Joanna Winter Sue Bouma
CALLTO ORDER Mayor Stone called this Special Meeting of Council to order at 5:01
p.m., recognizing the traditional unceded territory of the Stz’'uminus
First Nation and the Coast Salish people and expressing gratitude to
be here.
AGENDA APPROVAL
Moved and seconded:
i That Council approve the agenda for this Special Meeting of Council
€52018-242 for July 9,2018 with the following amendments:
e Additem 7.1. (New Business), “Volleyball Court Sand”
e Additem 7.2. (New Business), “Road Closure Notifications”
Motion carried.
MINUTES Moved and seconded:
CS 2018-243 That Council approve the minutes of the Public Hearing and Special

Meeting of Council held June 25, 2018.
Motion carried.

5 LADYSMITH



REPORTS

CS2018-244

CS2018-245

CS2018-246

Facility Condition Assessments

Kevin Grasty, Consultant for WSP, presented the Facility Condition
Assessments report to Council, noting that the scope of the
assessments involved gathering repair and renewal requirement
information on 43 buildings and sites, estimating remaining service,
and consolidating the information to assist in planning future capital
repairs. These repairs were forecasted over the next 15 years and
resulted in 5.9 million dollars in potential capital projects, with 58
per cent of the projects to be carried out in the next five years, and
90 per cent of the projects associated with the portfolio of
community centres, office buildings and emergency services.

Mr. Grasty and his associate Jessica Coburn responded to Council’s
questions and thanked staff for their assistance with the
assessments. Council commended the team for their
comprehensive and accessible report and presentation.

Moved and seconded:

That Council receive the Facility Condition Assessment Report, and
direct staff to develop a capital and financial plan for implementing
recommendations contained in the report.

Motion carried.

Park Asset Inventory and Condition Assessment

Moved and seconded:

That Council receive the Park Asset Inventory and Condition
Assessment Report, and direct staff to develop a capital and
financial plan for implementing recommendations contained in the
report.

Motion carried.

Coach House Consultation 2018

Moved and seconded:

That Council:

1. Receive the staff report dated July 9, 2018 summarizing the
coach house consultation 2018 results

2. Direct staff to amend the ‘Fees and Charges’ bylaw such that a
reduced application fee of $1,000 is applied for coach house
rezoning applications on an R-1 zoned lot.

Motion carried.

OPPOSED: Councillors Fradin, Friesenhan and Henderson



CS2018-247

CS2018-248

CS2018-249

CS2018-250

CS2018-251

Moved and seconded:

That Council direct staff to prepare a report to Council with
recommendations for conducting further community consultation
on coach houses in the R-1 zone, focusing specifically on R-1 zone
residents as they are directly impacted by the proposal to permit
coach houses in the R-1 zone.

Motion carried.

Film Permit Application - Sonic the Hedgehog

Moved and seconded:

That Council:

1. Approve in principle the requests for the closure of 1st Avenue
between Roberts and High Streets, and Gatacre Street between
1st Avenue and the laneway, between September 13 and 24 for
the days and times as outlined in the filming schedule provided
by the producers of The Sonic Movie, subject to final
confirmation of filming arrangements.

Motion carried.

Moved and seconded:

That Council refer to staff the requests for use of other Town sites
for parking, catering, lighting and related production vehicles as
outlined in the documents entitled “Proposed Essential Works
Trucks Parking” in order to investigate and report back to the next
meeting of Council with any alternatives.

Motion carried.

Mayor Stone and Councillor Hutchins declared a conflict of interest
with the next aspects of the agenda item due to their business
ownership on 1 Avenue and left the meeting.

The Corporate Officer presided over the election of a chair for this
part of the meeting, in the absence of both the Mayor and Deputy
Mayor.

Moved and seconded:
That Councillor Paterson assume the chair of the meeting.
Motion carried.

Councillor Paterson assumed the chair.

Moved and seconded:
That Council confirm that approval of the requests for street



BYLAWS

CS2018-252

NEW BUSINESS

CS2018-253

closures and parking in Ladysmith during filming of the Sonic the
Hedgehog movie is subject to:
a. Confirmation by the applicant that the film company has

designated a community liaison to be on site at all times to
act as liaison between Town residents and businesses and
the film company; and

. Commitment by the applicant to ensure detailed signage

with respect to parking closures and alternatives, “Open for
Business” signs listing businesses within the street closure
areain key locations.

Confirmation that the applicant has contacted all businesses
and residents in the affected area with information,
alternative arrangements if required, and a satisfactory

compensation package.
Motion carried.

Mayor Stone and Councillor Hutchins returned to the meeting.
Mayor Stone resumed the chair.

Town of Ladysmith Fees and Charges Bylaw 2008, No. 1644,

Amendment Bylaw 2018, No. 1969
Moved and seconded:

That Council give first three readings to “Town of Ladysmith Fees
and Charges Bylaw 2008, No.1644, Amendment Bylaw 2018,

No.1969".
Motion carried.

Volleyball Court Sand

Councillor Friesenhan made recommendations regarding the
use of sand from the volleyball courts to extend the sandy
beach at Transfer Beach Park.

Moved and seconded:

That Council direct staff to investigate the feasibility of building a
retaining wall above the beach at Transfer Beach Park and
depositing sand from the temporary Beach volleyball Courts
installed for the BC Summer Games in order to expand the sandy

beach.
Motion carried.

Road Closures

Councillor Fradin discussed the recent closing of the crosswalk on

Gatacre, noting that businesses were not notified.



QUESTION PERIOD Members of the public complimented Council on a well-run and
thoughtful meeting, and enquired about the status of the Ladysmith
Golf Course Clubhouse and whether there were plans to provide
access from Gourley Jane Park to the beach.

ADJOURNMENT
Moved and seconded:
CS 2018-254 That this Special Meeting of Council adjourn at 7:44 p.m.
Motion carried.
CERTIFIED CORRECT: Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (J. Winter)
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A letter was forwarded to the owners of the property on January 26, 2018 requesting that
the premises be cleaned up (copy attached). There were also several phone calls to the
owner during the past five months requesting that the property be cleaned up. Since that
time, the owner has made efforts to have garbage, debris, junk and derelict and unlicensed
vehicles removed from the property and other garbage, debris, junk and derelict vehicles
have appeared on the property. More recently, some of these items have been removed
but at the time of writing this report, its condition does not meet the minimum standard in
the Bylaw. Photographs of the current condition of the property will be presented at the
Council meeting.

The Bylaw Compliance Officer requests that Council proceed with Notice to the owner
giving them twenty-one (21) days to effect a clean-up or the work will be done by the
Town of Ladysmith or by its authorized agents or contractors.

ALTERNATIVES:
Council can choose to:
1. Provide alonger time period for the clean-up.
2. Not proceed with the Notice if the property has been satisfactorily cleaned-up
prior to the hearing.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

If the Town of Ladysmith is required to effect cleanup of the property, the bill for such
work will be forwarded to the owners and if not paid can be applied to the taxes for the
property at 317 Dogwood Drive.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:
A hearing is required and is scheduled for tonight’s Council meeting. Notice of the hearing
provided to the owner and occupant is attached to this report.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
This property has been an ongoing problem which has had negative effects on the
neighbourhood. The cleanup of this property will be much appreciated by the residents.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:

None.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:

CO0Complete Community Land Use O Low Impact Transportation
IGreen Buildings [ Multi-Use Landscapes
OInnovative Infrastructure [ Local Food Systems
CHealthy Community [ Local, Diverse Economy

Not Applicable
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TOWN OF LAISYSM ITH = Working together to build our future

January 26, 2018
Qur File: 4020-20

Ajit and Meeto Lalri
PO Box 1255 Stn Main
Ladysmith, BC

VoG 1A8

Dear Mr. and Mrs. Lalri:

RE: 317 DOGWOOD, LADYSMITH, BC

This letter is to advise you that the Town of Ladysmith, Bylaw Services has received a formal
complaint regarding the unsightly condition of your property. A recent inspection revealed
that there was garbage, junk and debris as well as derelict vehicles on your property.

The purpose of the Town's Property Maintenance Bylaw is to regulate, prohibit, and impose
minimum standards relating to the upkeep of real property.

Your immediate attention to this matter is required as | am providing you notice that, under
section 5 of the Property Maintenance Bylaw, you have 21 days within which to remediate
the unsightly conditions of your property.

Failure to comply can result in the laying of charges for violating section 5(c) of the Property
Maintenance Bylaw. Under the Ticket Information Utilization Bylaw a penalty of $200.00 per
day can be assessed. In addition, the Town may order and enter upon the property to
undertake the work at your expense in accordance with section 7 of the Property
Maintenance Bylaw.

If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me directly by
telephone at 250-245-6446 or by email at rmacnair@ladysmith.ca.

Your attention to this matter is appreciated.

Sincerely,

o —

Robin MacNair
Bylaw Officer
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Working together to build our future

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

DELIVERED BY REGISTERED MAIL AND BY HAND

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 8(3)(h) and 64 Community Charter

S.B.C. 2003 CHAPTER 26

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THAT PART OF LOT 24,
D.L.56,OYSTER DISTRICT, PLAN 965A LYING TO THE NORTH WEST OF A
BOUNDARY EQUIDISTANCE BETWEEN THE NORTH WESTERLY AND SOUTH
EASTERLY BOUNDARIES OF SAIDLOT

TO:  Ajit Singh Lalri and Meeto Kaur Lalri
PO BOX 1255, STN MAIN
LADYSMITH,BC  V9G1A8
(Owner)

Tenant - 317 Dogwood Drive, Ladysmith, V9G 1T5
(Occupier)

NOTICE OF HEARING

TAKE NOTICE that the Municipal Council of the Town of Ladysmith pursuant to
Sections 8(3)(h) and 64 of the Community Charter and Ladysmith Property Maintenance
Bylaw 2015, No. 1894, will at the hour of 7:00pm on the 16th day of July, 2018 in the
Council Chambers at the City Hall, 410 Esplanade, Ladysmith, British Columbia hear
representations by Town staff as to whether, with respect to the lands more particularly
described above, the Owner/Occupier shall be required to remove the accumulation
thereon of unlicensed vehicles, refuse, discarded material, overgrown grass and weeds.

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that should Council require the Owner/Occupier to
remove the described accumulation, and the Owner/Occupier defaults, the Council may
direct its employees and others to enter and effect the removal at the expense of the
Owner. The charges for doing so, if unpaid on December 31stin the year in which the Town

2017
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH Working together to build our future.

of Ladysmith effects the removal, shall be added to and form part of the taxes payable in
respect of the real property in question, as taxes in arrears.

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that should you wish to make representation to the
Council regarding the lands and premises listed above, you should appear at that time, date
and place to make your presentation to Council.

THIS NOTICE is given by the Municipal Council of the Town of Ladysmith this 22nd

of June, 2018.

CorpBrate Officer (J. Winter)
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o Permeable paver surfacing will provide a parking space for the coach house resident
and access to the garage.

e Agarbage and recycling area will be provided under the coach house staircase, and will
be screened from view.

Energy and Water Conservation Guidelines
e Energy conservation will be considered in the design and construction.

The proposed coach house complies with the Zoning Bylaw, and the DPA 10 coach house
guidelines.

ALTERNATIVES:

While the issuance of a Development Permit is not a completely discretionary decision of
Council, Council may decide to not issue Development Permit 3060-18-05 where the refusal
is based upon a determination that the development permit application does not meet the
Development Permit Area guidelines. If the Development Permit is refused then reasons must
be given. The determination by Council must be in good faith and it must be reasonable, not
arbitrary.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS;
A Development Permit is required prior to issuance of a building permit to construct the
coach house dwelling.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
Development Permit applications do not require statutory notice. Public input was received
during the preparation of the coach house development permit guidelines.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:

The Development Permit application was referred to the Infrastructure Services Department
and to the Building Inspector for review. Their comments have been integrated into the site
design.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:

X Complete Community Land Use [1Low Impact Transportation
[1Green Buildings [1Multi-Use Landscapes
Linnovative Infrastructure [ Local Food Systems
CHealthy Community (Local, Diverse Economy

O Not Applicable

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:

XEmployment & Tax Diversity [ Natural & Built Infrastructure
COWatershed Protection & Water Management (1 Partnerships
CCommunications & Engagement (1 Not Applicable

18
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

(Section 489 Local Government Act)

FILE NO: 3060-18-05

DATE: July 16, 2018

Name of Owner(s) of Land (Permittee): Philip Michael Andrew Richardson

Applicant: Gary Sayers (GMS Contracting)

Subject Property (Civic Address): 332 Warren Street

1.

This Development Permit is subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the
Town of Ladysmith applicable thereto, except as specifically varied by this Permit.

This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Town of Ladysmith
described below, and any and all buildings structures and other development
thereon:

Lot9

Block 79 of an unnumbered portion of Oyster District
Plan 703A

PID# 0008-5706-131

(referred to as the “Land”)

This Permit has the effect of authorizing the issuance of a building permit for the
construction of a building on the Land in accordance with the plans and
specifications attached to this Permit, and subject to all applicable laws except as
varied by this Permit, subject to the conditions, requirements and standards
imposed and agreed to in Section 5 of this Permit.

The Permittee does not have the effect of varying the use or density of the Land
specified in Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014, No. 1860.

The Permittee, as a condition of the issuance of this Permit, agrees:

(a) To construct a two-storey accessory building on the Land, with a coach
house on the upper floor that is a maximum of 60 square metres in size,
in accordance with the building designs shown in Schedule A: Building
Elevations.

(b) To develop the Land as shown in Schedule B: Site Plan including:

Page 1 of 2
20



10.

i. A private yard that is screened from the primary dwelling with a fence
1.2m minimum in height;
ii. A second storey deck/balcony that is a maximum of 2.9 square metres in
size;
iii. Placing an address so that it is visible from Fourth Avenue; and
iv. Provision of a screened area for garbage and recycling.

If the Permittee does not substantially start any construction permitted by this
Permit within two years of the date of this Permit as established by the
authorizing resolution date, this Permit shall lapse.

The plans and specifications attached to this Permit are an integral part of this
Permit.

Notice of this Permit shall be filed in the Land Title Office at Victoria under s.503
of the Local Government Act, and upon such filing, the terms of this Permit
(3060-18-05) or any amendment hereto shall be binding upon all persons who
acquire an interest in the land affected by this Permit.

This Permit prevails over the provisions of the Bylaw in the event of conflict.

Despite issuance of this permit, construction may not start without a Building
Permit or other necessary permits.

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LADYSMITH
ON THE DAY OF 2018.

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER

OWNER

PLEASE PRINT NAME

Page 2 of 2
21
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‘Wash Me on Ludlow’ business. However, a caretaker unit already exists at 930 Ludiow Road
in the second storey of the ‘Wash Me on Ludlow’ building. Generally, residential use of
industrial land is not recommended. The Zoning Bylaw requires that caretaker dwelling units
on industrial properties are only permitted within the principal industrial building, not as a
detached dwelling.

OCP and Zoning: 941 Oyster Bay Drive

QCP Land Use Industrial
Development Permit Area DPA 5 - Industrial
DPA 7 - Hazard Lands
Zone Light Industrial (I-1)
ALTERNATIVES:

Council can choose to not proceed with TUP
application 3340-18-01.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS;
None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: .
A TUP may be issued by Council by resolution. It
can provide for a temporary use for a three year
period, with one renewal permitted. Statutory
notice is required. This is a discretionary decision
of Council.

/
!
SUBJECT \
PROPERTY

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
The statutory notice regarding TUP 3340-18-01

was sent to the neighbourhood on June 28,2018
and was placed in the Chronicle newspaper on
July 4, 2018. A notice sign was posted on the
property on June 28, 2018. At the time of writing
this report no comments have been received.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL
INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:
A building permit and driveway access permit will be required to locate the mobile home at
941 Ludlow Road. Sanitary, storm and water services would also need to be provided to the
mobile home.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:

[(JComplete Community Land Use (1 Low Impact Transportation
(O Green Buildings (1 Multi-Use Landscapes
Cllnnovative Infrastructure [ Local Food Systems
OHealthy Community Local, Diverse Economy

O Not Applicable
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
TEMPORARY USE PERMIT

FILE NO: 3340-18-01

DATE: July 16, 2018

Name of Owner(s) of Land (permittee): Dunsmuir Investments Lid.
Applicant: GlenCar Consultants Inc.

Subject Property: Lot B, District Lot 24, Oyster District, Plan VIP83303 (9441 Oyster Bay Drive)

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all Town of Ladysmith bylaws that apply to this
permit.

2. This permit applies to the lands described below, and any buildings, structures, and other
development thereon (hereinafter called the Land).

Lot B, District Lot 24, Oyster District, Plan VIP83303 (8941 Oyster Bay Drive)
PID: 027-104-788

3. Pursuant to Division 8 in Part 14 of the Local Government Act, this Temporary Use Permit
authorizes the owner of the Land or authorized agent to obtain the necessary permits to locate a
Mobile Home for residential use on the Land on a temporary basis subject to the following
condition:

a) Atthe end of the term the owner of the Land shall fully remove the mobile home from the
Land.

4. This Permit is issued on the condition that the Permittee has provided to the Town of Ladysmith
security in the form of an irrevocable Letter of Credit to guarantee the performance of the
condition in section 3 of this Permit and to correct any unsafe condition which may result from a
contravention of a condition of this Permit. The Letter of Credit shall be for a period of four years,
shall be automatically extended, and shall be in the amount of $10,000.

5. Should the Permittee fail to satisfy the conditions referred to in section 3 and 4 of this Permit,
the Town of Ladysmith may undertake and complete the works required to satisfy the conditions
or carry out any work required to correct the unsafe conditions, at the cost of the Permittee, and
may apply the security in payment of the cost of the work, with any excess to be returned to the
Permittee.

6. This permit is not a development permit, building permit or driveway access permit.

7. This permit was approved on 20  and issued on , 20

27



8. Notice of this Permit shall be filed in the Land Title Office at Victoria under s.503 of the Local
Government Act, and upon such filing, the terms of this Permit (3340-18-01) or any amendment
hereto shall be binding upon all persons who acquire an interest in the land affected by this
Permit.

9. Pursuant to section 497 of the Local Government Act, this permit lapses three years from the
date of issuance of this permit.

10. This permit may be renewed once only.

Town of Ladysmith

Corporate Officer Date Permit Issued

Mayor

Applicant

Applicant
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ALTERNATIVES:

While the issuance of a Development Permit is not a completely discretionary decision of
Council, Council may decide to not issue Development Permit 3060-18-06 where the
refusal is based upon a determination that the application does not meet the
Development Permit guidelines. If the Development Permit is refused then reasons must
be given. The determination by Council must be in good faith and it must be reasonable,
not arbitrary.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

A Riparian Development Permit is required prior to vegetation removal and clearing the
land.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
None.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:
The building inspector is working with the owners regarding a building permit for the
retaining wall.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:

CComplete Community Land Use U Low Impact Transportation
[(1Green Buildings Multi-Use Landscapes
Ulinnovative Infrastructure [1 Local Food Systems
[IHealthy Community [1 Local, Diverse Economy

(] Not Applicable

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:

CEmployment & Tax Diversity (1 Natural & Built Infrastructure
ClWatershed Protection & Water Management U1 Partnerships
[(JCommunications & Engagement Not Applicable

SUMMARY:

It is recommended to support Development Permit 3060-18-06.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

(Section 489 Local Government Act)

FILE NO: 3060-18-06

DATE: July 16, 2018

Name of Owner(s) of Land (Permitiee): Van-Isle Storage Ltd.

Applicant: Ryan Bishop and Chris Ronald

Subject Property (Civic Address): 10910 Westdowne Road

1.

This Development Permit is subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the
Town of Ladysmith applicable thereto, except as specifically varied by this
Permit.

This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Town of Ladysmith
described below, and any and all buildings structures and other development
thereon:

Lot B

District Lot 72

Oyster District

Plan EPP20506

PID# 028-923-669
(referred to as the “Land”)

This Permit has the effect of authorizing the alteration of land designated in
the Official Community Plan under section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government
Act; subject to the conditions, requirements and standards imposed and
agreed to in section 5 of this Permit.

This Permit does not have the effect of varying the use or density of the Land
specified in Zoning Bylaw 2014, No. 1860.

The Permittee, as a condition of the issuance of this Permit, agrees:
i. To protect the Streamside Protection and Enhancement Area (SPEA)

which is 15 metres from the highwater mark on the eastern side of the
wetland on the Land as shown in Figure 1 within this Permit.

Page 1 of 5
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d) Installation of vegetation within the SPEA must be completed in the
fall or early spring and must be maintained and irrigated as
necessary for optimal survival.
e) The required species and numbers of plants required to be planted
in the SPEA are shown in Table 1.

Table 1: Plants Required for the ~585m2 SPEA restoration area

PLANT SPECES |spaciNg | POT REQUIRED
COMMON NAME , ‘ . , BETWEEN SIZE NUMBER OF
‘ . . _PLANTS | pLants
Salmonberry Rubus spectabilis 1m?2 #1 75
Red elderberry Sambucus racemosa ssp. 5m?2 #5 4

pubens

Nootka rose Rosa nutkana 1m?2 #1 40
Snowberry Symphoricarpos albus 1m?2 #1 40
Red-osier dogwood Cornus sericea 2m? #1 10
Sword fern Polystichum munitum 1 m?2 #1 30
Western redcedar Thuja plicata 5m?2 #1 6
TOTAL 205

vi.  After restoration of the SPEA:
a) Install fencing or other permanent demarcation suitable to the site
along the SPEA boundary to prevent further encroachment.
Demarcation options include fencing, a row of boulders or a hedge.

vii.  The land clearing activity and restoration plantings shall be monitored
by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) and a completion
inspection report from the QEP confirming compliance with the
conditions in Section 5 of this Permit must be submitted to the Town
prior to the release of the security referred to in Section 6 of this
Permit.

This Permit is issued on the condition that the Permittee has provided to the
Town of Ladysmith security in the form of an irrevocable Letter of Credit to
guarantee the performance of the conditions in section 5 of this Permit. The
Letter of Credit shall be for a period of one year, shall be automatically
extended, and shall be in the amount of $2,400.

Should the Permittee fail to satisfy the conditions referred to in section 5 and
6 of this Permit, the Town of Ladysmith may undertake and complete the
works required to satisfy the landscaping conditions at the cost of the
Permittee, and may apply the security in payment of the cost of the work, with
any excess to be returned to the Permittee.

Should there be no default as herein provided, or where a Permit lapses, the
Town of Ladysmith shall return any security provided to the Permittee.

Page 3of 5
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10.

11.

12.

13.

If the Permittee does not substantially start any land clearing permitted by this
Permit within two years of the date of this Permit as established by the
authorizing resolution date, this Permit shall lapse.

The plans and specifications attached to this Permit are an integral part of
this Permit.

Notice of this Permit shall be filed in the Land Title Office at Victoria under
s.503 of the Local Government Act, and upon such filing, the terms of this
Permit (3060-18-06) or any amendment hereto shall be binding upon all
persons who acquire an interest in the land affected by this Permit.

This Permit prevails over the provisions of the Bylaw in the event of conflict.

Despite issuance of this permit, construction may not start without a Building
Permit or other necessary permits.

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LADYSMITH
ONTHE __DAYOF ____ 201_.

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER

OWNER

PLEASE PRINT NAME

OWNER

PLEASE PRINT NAME

Page 4 of 5
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Heritage by the Sea

Nestled on the eastern shores of spectacular Vancouver Island, Ladysmith features all the warmth and
charm of asmall town, yet offers its residents a full range of services, amenities and world class municipal
infrastructure typically found in larger urban centres. Ladysmith is a growing community (population
8,949 in 2017, BC Stats) located just 88 km (55 miles) north of Victoria and 23 km (14 miles) south of
Nanaimo.

Ladysmith residents place a very high value on preserving the storied chronicle of this community,
actively celebrating the town’s intriguing heritage while respectfully acknowledging the more than
5000 years of history of the first residents of this land, the Stz’uminus First Nation. The town’s strong
sense of pride for its past is also evident in its well-maintained architecture and colourful streetscapes.
First Avenue, a major thoroughfare, was nationally recognized in 2017 as Canada’s Great Street by the
Canadian Institute of Planners.

42 Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report
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Message from the Mayor

On behalf of Town Council, | am
honoured to provide this message
for the 2017 Annual Report for
the Town of Ladysmith.

| am proud to call Ladysmith my
home. This picturesque seaside
community has continued
to cement its position as a
welcoming, progressive and
resilient place where people are
valued and the achievements of
our community are recognized
and celebrated. One of our most
notable achievements last year
was when our very own First
Avenue was named Canada’s Great Street during the Great Places in Canada contest. This incredible
honour showcased the pivotal role First Avenue has played in helping to shape Ladysmith’s identity as a
charming, diverse and vibrant west coast community.

Of course there are challenges with running a town and working cooperatively with Council members,
Town staff, and our stakeholders, including the Stz’'uminus First Nation, to make numerous and often
difficult decisions that affect our thousands of residents. However, we do this work because we are
committed to building and maintaining a solid foundation for the future of this community. To this end, in
2017 we made progress on several important initiatives. They included:

eNear completion of our new state
of the art bio-solids composting
facility

ePlans with our Stz’uminus
partners and others to create
a new formal economic
development strategy for the
Town

eApplication to the federal
Abandoned Boats Program for an
initial removal of up to ten boats
littering our shoreline

e[ aunch of the Ladysmith Youth
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Plan project

eCreation of a new Waterfront Area Plan following
significant public consultation

e|nstallation of our first ever rainbow crosswalk at the
corner of 1st Avenue and Gatacre Street

Guided by our current Strategic Priorities and
supported by dedicated Town staff and a year round
roster of community volunteers, Ladysmith Council
continues to place a strong emphasis on the value

of partnerships. With the assistance of our partners
and stakeholders, we are continuing to strike a
balance between fiscal accountability and thoughtful,
balanced action aimed at helping us to achieve our
vision for a thriving and sustainable community now
and years from now.

| would like to thank our Town staff for their
continued commitment to providing excellence in
service to our residents. | am grateful to our many
individual and community volunteers for their selfless
service year after year. And | would like to extend

my appreciation to my fellow Council members for

their enduring dedication to Ladysmith and its residents. It’s the combined effort of everyone working
together that allows our community to thrive and flourish.

Aaron Stone, Mayor

44
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Ladysmith Council

The Mayor and Council of the Town of Ladysmith were each elected for a four-year term in the
municipal election held in November 2014. Each member is appointed to standing portfolios, Town
and regional committees.

Mayor Aaron Stone

Cowichan Valley Regional District Director
Municipal Services Committee

Waterfront Area Plan Project Leadership Committee
Stocking Lake Advisory Committee

Ladysmith Chamber of Commerce

Councillor Steve Arnett Councillor Joe Friesenhan

e Municipal Services e Deputy Mayor (June 1to
Committee December 1,2017)

e Parcel Tax Review Panel e Cowichan Valley Regional

District (Alternate Director
toMay 31,2017)

e Municipal Services
Committee (Vice Chair)

e Waterfront Area Plan Project
Leadership Committee

e Vancouver Island
Regional Library Board

e Advisory Planning
Commission

e Parks, Recreation
and Culture Advisory
Committee (alternate)

e Liquid Waste
Management Committee

e Waterfront Design
Charrette Committee

e Liquid Waste Management

Committee
e Stocking Lake Advisory

. e Festival of Lights
Committee

e Ladysmith Downtown

Councillor Cal Fradin Business Association

e Deputy Mayor (to May 31, 2017) ¢ Adviso.ry .Planning

] . o Commission (alternate)
e CVRD Community Safety Advisory Commission
e Municipal Services Committee

e Protective Services Committee (Chair)

Protective Services
Committee (alternate)

e Ladysmith Early Years
e Liquid Waste Management Committee Partnership (alternate)

e Ladysmith Celebrations Committee

e Ladysmith Downtown Business
Association (alternate)

e Advisory Design Panel (alternate)

e Social Planning Cowichan (alternate)

e |nvasive Species Committee (alternate)

e Ladysmith Interagency Committee (alternate)
e Social Planning Cowichan
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2014 - 2018

Councillor Rob Hutchins Councillor Carol Henderson
e Parcel Tax Review Panel e Municipal Services
Committee

e Municipal Services

Committee (Chair) e |nvasive Species

e Waterfront Area Plan Project Advisory Committee

Leadership Committee e Ladysmith Interagency

e Waterfront Design Committee

Charrette Committee e Ladysmith Early
e Heritage Revitalization Years Partnership
Advisory Commission e Social Planning Cowichan

e Ladysmith Community
Justice Program
e Vancouver Island Regional

e Cowichan Valley Regional Library Board (alternate)
District Alternate Director (June .
e CVRD Community

1 to December 31,2017) Safety Advisory

* Advisory Design Panel Committee (alternate)
e Protective Services Committee

Councillor Duck Paterson

e Parks, Recreation and Culture
Advisory Committee

e Heritage Revitalization Advisory
Commission (alternate)

e Ladysmith Chamber of
Commerce (alternate)

e Ladysmith Celebrations
Committee (alternate)

e Festival of Lights (alternate) *All appointments as of December 1, 2016
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2017 Town Advisory Bodies

Council also appoints citizens to serve on local advisory commissions and committees. Their role is to
review matters referred by Council, and to make recommendations to help Council conduct its business.

Municipal Services Committee

(Council Committee of the Whole)

Responsible for advising and making recommen-
dations to Council on a broad spectrum of issues
related to departmental matters - Finance, Admin-
istration, Public Works, Parks, Recreation & Cul-
ture, and Development Services

Coun. Rob Hutchins, Chair

All members of Council

Guillermo Ferrero, Management Liaison

Heritage Revitalization Advisory Commission
Marnie Craig (Chair)

Tamara Hutchinson

Robert J (Bob) Darling

Jennifer Robinson (Lush) (term ended 2017)
Marina Sacht

Harald Cowie

Rob Johnson

Ann Rogers, Historical Society Liaison
Bernardien Knol

Coun. Rob Hutchins, Council Liaison

Coun. Duck Paterson, Alternate Liaison
Felicity Adams, Management Liaison
Angela Davies, Staff Liaison

Advisory Planning Commission

Linda Mix, Chair

Mayo McDonough

Tina Donovan

D. Brian McLaurin

Bruce Laxdal

Christy Villiers

Jon Steininger

Coun. Cal Fradin, Council Liaison (term ended
2017)

Coun. Steve Arnett (appointed 2017)
Coun. Joe Friesenhan, Alternate Liaison
Felicity Adams, Management Liaison
Lisa Brinkman, Staff Liaison

Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report

Advisory Design Panel

Brian Childs, Chair

Ron Kinney (term ended 2017)
Kaien Shimizu (term ended 2017)
Harald Cowie, HRAC Liaison

Lorne Shaw (appointed 2017)
Lacey McRae Williams (appointed 2017)
Michelle Munro (appointed 2017)
Mayor Aaron Stone, Council Liaison
Coun. Carol Henderson, (alternate)
Lisa Brinkman, Staff Liaison

Board of Variance
Jan Christensen
Tim Hornet

Terry Doherty

Parks, Recreation & Culture Advisory Committee
Tim Richards, Chair

Jim Allair

Gord Horth

Roger Kimmerly

Bruce Mason

Tara Pollock

Coun. Duck Paterson, Council Liaison
Coun. Steve Arnett (alternate)

Clayton Postings, Management Liaison
Julie Tierney, Staff Liaison

Invasive Species Advisory Committee
Chantal Blumel

April Marrington

Gail Pasaluko

Coun. Carol Henderson, Council Liaison
Coun. Cal Fradin (alternate)

Clayton Postings, Management Liaison
Glen Britton, Staff Liaison

Anita McLeod, Staff Liaison
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Protective Services Committee

Coun. Cal Fradin, Chair

Sybille Sanderson, CVRD - Regional Emergency
Coordinator

Ken Hamilton, COPS

Don Watson, COPS

Allen McDermid, Ladysmith Search and Rescue
Bill Drysdale, Search and Rescue Alternate
S/Sgt. Ken Brissard, RCMP

Steve VanderMinne, BC Ambulance Service
Eric Kesteloot, Stz’'uminus First Nation (term
ended 2017)

Chris Baker, Stz’uminus First Nation (appointed
2017)

Coun. Cal Fradin, Council Liaison

Coun. Joe Friesenhan, Alternate Liaison

Coun. Duck Paterson, Alternate Liaison (appointed

2017)

Ray Delcourt, Chief, Ladysmith Fire/Rescue
Guillermo Ferrero, Management Liaison
Geoff Goodall, Management Liaison

Liquid Waste Management Committee

John T. Wilson, Chair (appointed 2017)

Gerry Clarke

Jim Cram

Ross Davis

Greg Edwards

Nick Meijerdrees

Lorena Mueller

David Brown

Ray Gauthier, Stz’uminus First Nation

Blake Medlar, Ministry of Environment

David Leitch, Cowichan Valley Regional District
Coun. Joe Friesenhan, Council Liaison

Coun. Steve Arnett, Council Liaison (appointed
2017)

Coun. Cal Fradin, Council Liaison

Coun. Rob Hutchins, Council Liaison (term ended
2017)

Geoff Goodall, Management Liaison

Curtis Baker, Staff Liaison
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Message from the CAO

Thank you for your interest in the Town of Ladysmith’s 2017 Annual Report. This
document provides a snapshot of the Town’s achievements over the past year and
details our strong financial position.

Now in my second year as the Town'’s Chief Administrative Officer, | continue to
be impressed by this vibrant and growing community, its residents, businesses and
visitors. Ladysmith remains dedicated to honouring its heritage while also setting
its sights on opportunities for economic development and sustainable growth.

| am proud to say that Town of Ladysmith staff is second to none. This dedicated group of professionals
helps me to ensure the Town’s financial, capital and operational activities run smoothly year round and
that our citizens, visitors and Council consistently experience excellence in service delivery. | am grate-
ful to Town staff for the quality of the work they do and for their tremendous commitment to the Town
and its residents.

As senior staff leader, the CAO’s role is to provide leadership and direction to staff on the continued
delivery of essential services, as well as implementation of Council’s clear set of priorities as set out in
the 2016-2019 Strategic Priorities document. In 2017, we made steady progress on action items related
to all five strategic priorities and | look forward to continuing along this positive path.

| would also like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the hard work and unwavering commitment of
Ladysmith’s Mayor and Council. Their dedication to this wonderful community is resulting in a vision for
the future that will continue to benefit Ladysmith, its residents, and its partners and stakeholders for
years to come.

Guillermo Ferrero
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Civic Officials

The organizational structure of the Town is made up of five departments in three divisions:

e Corporate Services (Administration and Legislative Services and Communications)

e Development Services (Planning, Building, Bylaw Compliance and Economic Development)

e Financial Services (includes Human Resources and Information Technology)
e Infrastructure Services (Public Works, Utilities, Parks Maintenance and Engineering)
e Parks, Recreation and Culture

Each department is overseen by a Director, who reports to the Chief Administrative
Officer (CAO). The CAO reports to Council, and is responsible for ensuring that the
strategic priorities and decisions established by Council are carried out by staff.

Chief AdMINIStrative OffICET ... eereeeciseeseeiseeisesssessssessesssesssessesssesaees Guillermo Ferrero
Director of Infrastructure Services (Core SErviCes) .. eeeseeseeeeesseseneee Geoff Goodall
Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture (Community Services)............. Clayton Postings
Director of Development Services (Community SErvices) ... eeerenenn. Felicity Adams
Director of Financial Services (Corporate SErvices)......neenerneesennenns Erin Anderson
Manager of Accounting Services (Corporate Services)....... e Gerald Fukakusa
Manager of Legislative Services (Corporate Services).........rrerererreceonns Joanna Winter
Manager of Human Resources (COrporate SErviCeS) ... rnersessessessseseens lan Paydli
Manager of Operations (COre SEIVICES) ... reeeeeesssssesssesssesssssesssssssssens Kevin Goldfuss
EXECULIVE LIQISON: ... riuieieeieiseiseiseiseissiseississsissssssssesasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssases Donna Smith
APPIrOVING OFfICEN ottt ess s sesasssssessessessssassassessessessssassessesssaes Geoff Goodall
Chief, Ladysmith Fire-Rescue (COre SErviCeS) ... neisesessessssssssssssssssanes Ray Delcourt
Officer in Charge, RCMP Ladysmith Detachment...........ccoeeervercererrenennnees S/Sgt. Ken Brissard

Financial Institutions: Ladysmith and District Credit Union, Royal Bank of Canada
Auditor: MNP LLP

(all positions as at December 31, 2017)
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Town Departments & Staff

City Hall

Front Row: Andrea Hainrich, Aria MacColl,
Guillermo Ferrero, lan Paydli, Camelia Copp,
Donna Smith, Joanna Winter

Second Row, L to R: Shawna Cadieux, Sam
Eck, Sue Bouma, Meagan Randle

Third Row, L to R: Gerry Fukakusa, Joan
Ogden, Kari-Anne McLennan, Pam Ferreira,
Erin Anderson

Corporate Services

This department is headed by the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO). He reports directly to Council and is respon-
sible for ensuring that all decisions of Council are carried out. The CAO also directly manages corporate strategic
projects. The Legislative Services Team and Executive Liaison are part of the Corporate Services Department.

The Legislative Services team supports the work of Council and is responsible for records management. The team
is also responsible for communications and engagement, informing the citizens and other stakeholders of the
activities of the Town and seeking input and feedback.

Financial Services

The Financial Services department is responsible for financial planning and reporting as well as processing payroll,
accounts payable, accounts receivable, and purchasing and carries out the calculation and collection of all property
tax and utility billing as well as invoices for business licences. This department is also responsible for information
technology and oversees all matters related to human resources for the Town.

Development Services

The Development Services department leads long range and current planning, urban design, and heritage pres-
ervation, providing advice to Council on development matters. The department also processes applications
regarding land use, and supports economic development. Through the issuance of building permits and inspec-
tions carried out at various stages of construction, the department works to ensure that new construction and
renovations meet the standards of the BC Building Code and the Town'’s land use regulations. The Department
also provides information and education for the public about Town land use policies and regulations and works to
obtain compliance with Town bylaws.

Development Services

Top Row: Colin Bollinger

Third Row, L to R: Angela Davies, Diane Webber
Second Row, L to R: Robin MacNair

Front Row, L to R: Lisa Brinkman, Felicity Adams
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Town Departments & Staff

Parks, Recreation and Culture

Parks, Recreation and Culture

The Town is committed to providing quality recreational facilities and services to support community wellness.
The Parks, Recreation and Culture department develops recreation programs and events, through either direct
provision or partnering with various community groups, efficiently and effectively delivering optimum services
to the community as a whole. Parks planning, capital improvements and parks program delivery are incorporated
into the department, with a focus on ensuring the community has a positive experience in both the natural and
built environments. The department is also responsible for maintaining the Town’s 17 buildings.

Left to Right: Len Manuel, Robyn McAdam, Sue Glenn, Shannon Wilson, Tami-Lyn Stephen, Danielle Winter, Tiffany Wong,
Clayton Postings, Anita McLeod
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Town Departments & Staff

Infrastructure Services

The Infrastructure Services department is responsible for all public works, and for maintaining the Town’s infra-
structure: roads, sidewalks, parks and trails, water and storm sewer mains, the wastewater treatment plant, the
bio-solids composting facility and the Town'’s water supply system. The department also oversees solid waste
management (garbage and recycling services), operates the Ladysmith Cemetery and provides engineering
services.

Infrastructure Services

Back Row, L to R: Rocky Coussens, Shawn Freer, Geoff Goodall, Neil Bouma, Mike Morgan, Wolf Winter, Curtis
Baker, Mike Brown, Martin Barney, Shane Lassam, Ron Vaux, Beverley Taschuck, Larry McLeod, Ryan Dall-
more, Greg Grueber, Bob Simpson, Isaac Jack, Chris Pinnington, Simon Skelton, Glenn Britton, Kevin Goldfuss,
Sean Lefebure

Front Row, L to R: Mike Ganderton, Ryan Andre, Kevin Bell, Dave Osborne, Jenica Ng-Cornish, Darrian Ge-
rard, Travis Chossen
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Joint Occupational Health & Safety Committee
Provides advice and recommendations to the employer
on issues related to health and safety and the occupa-
tional environment, and works to ensure compliance

2017 Staff Committees

with WorkSafeBC regulations.

lan Paydli - Co-Chair
Shane Lassam - Co-Chair
Clayton Postings
Andrea Hainrich

PJ Halliday

Ladysmith Fire/Rescue

Kevin Golfuss
Mike Brown
Ray Delcourt
Mike Ganderton

Employee Wellness Committee
Responsible for organizing an on-going
Corporate Wellness Program.

Sue Bouma Karen Cousins/lan
Chris Pinnington Paydli

Felicity Adams

PJ Halliday

Labour Management Committee
Responsible for unionized employees, per-
sonnel issues, and the union contract.

lan Paydli - Co-chair  Erin Anderson
Bob Simpson - Co-  Mike Morgan
Chair Sue Glenn
Guillermo Ferrero Sam Eck

Ladysmith Fire/Rescue is a volunteer fire department that provides fire protection to the Town of Ladysmith, parts
of Saltair and the Diamond Improvement District. The fire protection area spans over 40 square miles.

Ladysmith Fire/Rescue is dispatched to approximately 200 calls per year by FIRECOM which is stationed out of

Nanaimo Fire Hall Station #1.

Middle Row: Dan Cross, Chad Arsenault
Back Row: Ray Delcourt, Wayne Johnston, Mike Smith, Matt Rickett, Barry Hartl, John Goodman Jr., Jason

Rollans, Dwain King, Glenn Irvine, Owen Burt, Kevin Huberts

Front Row: Mike Turner, Chris Geiger, Mike Porter, Ron Moore, Al Delcourt, Andy Nguyen, Daniel Gillard
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Town Services

The Town of Ladysmith is building a future that emphasizes the importance of environ-
mental, social and economic sustainability, as well as a strong sense of shared values and
community identity. This blueprint for the future is designed to ensure a balance between community
growth, the need for sustainability, and the community’s desire to maintain the charming character of our

historic town.

The Town is responsible for providing a wide variety of services to citizens. These include:

4434304830230 0323003330730

Transportation Network (roads, bridges, street cleaning, sidewalks, etc.)
Storm Water Management

Garbage/Recycling/Organics Collection

Sewage Treatment System

Water Supply

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Facilities, Programs and Services
Fire Protection

Land Use Planning

Economic Development

Building Inspection

Domestic Animal Control

Bylaw Establishment and Enforcement

Heritage and Revitalization

Cemetery

Policing (Royal Canadian Mounted Police)

Local government services that are not the responsibility of the Town of Ladysmith include:

4443234003330
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School System (Provincial Government and Local School Board)

Social and Health Programs (Provincial Government)

Hospital Care System (Provincial Government)

Real Property Assessments (BC Assessment)

Solid Waste Disposal, 911, Emergency Planning (Cowichan Valley Regional District)
Employee Pension Plan (Provincial Plan)

Debt Marketing (Municipal Finance Authority)

Library Collection and Distribution System (Vancouver Island Regional Library)
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Regional Relationships

The Town of Ladysmith is represented on the following regional boards, which provide a variety of ser-
vices for the residents of Ladysmith:

= Cowichan Valley Regional District
= Cowichan Valley Regional Hospital District
= Vancouver Island Regional Library

The Town of Ladysmith obtains services from the following inter-municipal organizations:

= Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) - A provincial organization that provides marketing, placement
and administration of municipal borrowing. This Authority also operates an investment pool and
leasing program on behalf of municipalities.

= Municipal Insurance Association (MIA) - The main purpose of the MIA is to pool the risks of liability
so as to reduce the impact upon any member municipality. Under the Reciprocal Insurance Exchange
Agreement the Municipality is assessed a premium and a specific deductible for its claims based on
population.
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Strategic Plan and Priorities

Ladysmith’s 2014 — 2018 Council. Left to right: Councillor Duck Paterson, Councillor Steve Arnett, Councillor Carol Henderson,
Mayor Aaron Stone, Councillor Rob Hutchins, Councillor Joe Friesenhan, Councillor Cal Fradin

Council has established five strategic priorities to guide the work of Council and staff towards the

betterment of the community and build for the future.

NATURAL
AND BUILT
INFRASTRUCTURE

In addition to these strategic priorities,
Council and staff remain committed to
efficient and effective delivery of municipal
services; maintaining a focus on environ-
mental, economic and social sustainability;
and ensuring that Ladysmith continues to be a
strong, vibrant community offering an excep-
tional quality of life for generations to come.

Responsible planning and careful management
of our resources are critical to our success.

To that end, this strategic plan strikes a balance
between financial accountability and taking
action today to achieve our vision for tomorrow.

16 Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report

WATERSHED

PROTECTION AND

AND WATER
MANAGEMENT

COMMUNICATIONS

PARTNERSHIPS

ENGAGEMENT

We invite you to explore these strategic priori-
ties. We encourage you to provide feedback,
and we will continue to be responsive to
your input and to changing circumstances in
our community. We look forward to sharing
the results of our work in the years ahead.



OUR VISION

Ladysmith is a spirited community that values its small town quality of life, where we
work together as stewards of our heritage, environment and economy.

OUR MISSION

A safe, caring and vibrant community.

OUR VALUES

We lead with courage, respect and integrity.

The Town of Ladysmith is guided by the principle of sustainability in all its plans:

SUSTAINABILITY ACTION PLAN PRIORITIES EIGHT PILLARS OF SUSTAINABILITY
Growth and Development Complete Community Land Use
Economic Development Low Impact Transportation
Leadership and Partnerships Green Buildings

Water and Waste Systems Multi-use Landscapes

Green and Natural Systems Innovative Infrastructure
Transportation Local Food Systems

Energy and Emissions Healthy Community

Public Health and Social Development Local, Diverse Economy

Culture and Identity
Local Food and Agriculture
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2017 By the Numbers

18

57.6 % of total waste
diverted from the
landfill, up slightly

from 2015

Corporate & Financial
Administration

74 Council Meetings

48 External Committee Meetings

48 Internal Committee Meetings

782 Resolutions Adopted

6 Freedom of Information
Requests

37 Job Postings

6 Retirements

956 E-mail Subscribers

17 Statutory Advertisements

11 Corporate Services
Newsletters published

574 Subscribers to elec-
tronic utility billing

422 Subscribers to pre-autho-
rized utility payment program

488 Business Licences

233 Subscribers to the Property
Tax Pre-Authorized Payment Plan

19 Grants

Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report
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Waterfont Area Plan

® 3 Public Events
® 2 Surveys

® 1 Comission Joint
Team Meeting

1 Design Charette Meeting

2 Owners/Tenants Meeting

6 Leadership Team Meetings

Infrastructure Services

66.38 Kms of Roads
38.0 Kms of Sidewalks
85.9 Kms of Water Mains
70.9 Kms of Sewer Mains
4,289 Residential

Sewer Connections

3,132 Single Family Dwelling
Water Connections

365 Consecutive Days Providing
Safe Tested Drinking Water

21 Intermentsin
Ladysmith Cemetery

22 Marker Instalments in
Ladysmith Cemetery

3,108 Residential Units Serviced
with Waste Pick-up

1,424 Tonnes Solid Waste Collected
(garbage, recyclables, organics)

57 % of Total Waste
Diverted from Landfill

794 Customer Service Requests



2017 By the Numbers

Community Safety &

Protective Services Parks, Recreation
23 Hourly Paid On-Call & Culture
Ladysmith Fire/Rescue members ® 939 People Registered
7 Ladysmith Fire/Rescue Officers in Fitness Programs

® 1106 Drop-in Fitness classes

® 156 One-on-One
Personal Training Patrons

® 1117People Registered in
Aquatic Programs

® 476 Private Swimming
Lessons

e 85,660 Patrons Visited Frank
Jameson Community Centre
® 31 Amphitheatre Events

e 105 Picnics at Transfer
21 Development Permit Beach Shelters
Applications

225 Incident Responses
371 Bylaw Complaints
1,033 Dog Licences

1 Naut’sa Mawt Steering
Committee Meetings

Development Services
Building Services

® 403 Forrest Field Bookings

® 273.32 Hectares of Parks,
Trails and Open Spaces

® 26 Kms of Hiking and
Walking trails

5 Development Variance
Permit Applications

6 Rezoning Applications
3 Sign Permit Applications

O Temporary Use
Permit Application

11 Commission and
Committee Meetings

700 Customer Enquiries Planning

155 Customer Enquiries Building 365 ConseCUtive days
o o™ of providing safe

63 Occupancy Permits = D .
$11,056,230 Value drinking water in

of Construction 201 7

96 Bylaw Complaints
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Reporting Out

Promote responsible investment and innovative management of municipal resources to
support community prosperity, sustainable economic development, industry diversifi-
cation and quality employment opportunities in the Ladysmith area.

20

WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO

Engage with the development
community to streamline applica-
tion processes and implement best
practices for community growth
and investment

infor-
website

Update Building Permit
mation on the Town’s

Complete Official Community Plan
amendment and rezoning for the
Holland Creek development area

Engage with the community to
update the Waterfront Area Plan

Continue to provide tax incentives
for building investment

Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report

LOOKING AHEAD

WHAT WE DID: 2017
Due to extensive community
process associated with the

Waterfront Area Plan project (see
below) this project was deferred to
early 2018.

Implement a new Development
Cost Charges (DCC) program (2018

Implement recommendations for
service delivery improvements in
development application processing
(2018)

Complete an Industrial Lands
Strategy (2019)

Improve the industrial access road
in south Ladysmith (2020)

Website was updated with infor-
mation about the Town’s role in
building permitting and inspections,
as well as the role of others. Links
were updated for Provincial guides

Develop and put into use a new
Building Permit Checklist (2018)

The new Holland Creek Local Area
Plan was adopted.

The Waterfront Area Plan project
was officially launched in February
with a Speakers’ Night. A Design
Charrette with community
members was held in March. Two
on-line surveys and several public
events were held in 2017.

Implement the new Woaterfront
Area Plan

(beginning in 2018)

Continued to provide 1 Economic
Tax Exemption and 4 Heritage Tax
Exemption to qualified properties.

61

Review exemptions during
the Financial Planning Process
(annually)




Reporting Out

Strategic Priority: Employment and Tax Diversity

WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO

Explore options for a new City Hall
in the downtown

Continue to direct business
license revenue to fund the Visitor
Information Centre at the Ladysmith
Chamber of Commerce location

Enhance facilities at Transfer
Beach including the Transfer Beach
Interpretive History Project

Implement the next phase of the
welcome and directional signage
Project

Complete improvements to expand
Aggie Hall parking

Promote an Open for Business
climate

WHAT WE DID: 2017

LOOKING AHEAD

Engaged in discussions with

potential site location partners

Continue to set funds aside for a
new City Hall (ongoing)

Provided over $45,000 in funding
from Business License revenue as
part of an annual service agreement

Secure an appropriate location
partner
Implement an agreement for

tourism marketing services with the
Chamber of Commerce (2018)

Continue providing business
licence revenue to the Chamber of
Commerce (ongoing)

The Stz’'uminus and Town history at
Transfer Beach was celebrated with
the unveiling of four interpretative
plagues on Canada Day.

Two posts acknowledging
Ladysmith’s place on the 49th
Parallel were installed at Aggie Hall
plaza, as well as a new Provincial
Place of Interest sign.

Install new directional signage

Aggie Hall parking expansion is
underway and the addition of
18 new parking spaces is set for
completion in June 2018.

Established Economic Development
Round Table with Chamber, LDBA and
Economic Development Cowichan

62

Explore options for additional
parking in the vicinity of Aggie Hall
(2019)

Secure funds to implement the new
economic development strategy
(2018 and ongoing)
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Reporting Out

Strategic Priority: Natural and Built Infrastructure
Maintain, review and expand both natural and built infrastructure

WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO

Complete the Waste Water
Treatment Plant to secondary
Treatment

Upgrade the fueling system at
Public Works

Begin design and construction of a
water filtration plant

Complete the upgrade of Fourth
Avenue -- pavement, bike lanes,

storm, water and sanitary pipes

Prioritize maintenance of existing
infrastructure  before  making
commitments to new assets

Complete scheduled water, sewer
and storm main maintenance and
replacement (ongoing)

WHAT WE DID: 2017

LOOKING AHEAD

Project was completed in 2017 and
in 2018 received the Association of
Consulting Engineering Companies
(ACEC) Award for Engineering
Excellence

Secured a site and began construc-
tion of Bio-Solids Composting
facility

Complete construction of Bio-Solids
composting facility (2018)

Completed the fueling system
upgrade(s)

Design completed. Construction to
commence in 2018

Complete construction of the water
filtration plant (2019)

Initiated design and engineering for
the 4th Avenue upgrades

Completedesignand Phase | portion
of upgrades (2018)

Phase Il and beyond (ongoing)

Facilities condition assessment
of existing infrastructure is now
complete, with a detailed review of
the current infrastructure condi-
tions and long term maintenance
plan

Implement the Asset Management
Plan (by 2019)

Carry out infrastructure mainte-
nance in accordance with the plan
(ongoing)

Upgrade the Heritage Machine

Shop (begin in 2018, complete in
2019)

Expand GIS mapping to support
asset management (ongoing)

Complete street standards (2019)

22
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Reporting Out

Strategic Priority: Natural and Built Infrastructure

LlsapEsaiennsereier - WHAT WE DID: 2017 LOOKING AHEAD

Sl e e el idein @elleini=r Relined the water main from Colonia
Drive to Public Works Drive to Public Works

Colin el Usseslssendiien flea Sl Completed Fire Hall roof repair Complete expansion of the truck

Ordered a new Fire/Rescue Truck PaYattheFireHall (2018)

to replace the 1990 engine, for
delivery in 2018

Maintain and upgrade community Replace the Aggie Hall Playground
parks and the community centre (2018)
Upgrade the high Street Ball Fields
bleachers (2019)

Continue upgrades at the Frank
Jameson  Community  Centre,
including an ultra violet pool sani-
tation system (2018) and pool
deck replacement (2019) and other
upgrades (ongoing)

SOl nle seesee e i diie Covered the exposed section of the Upgrade the Stocking Lake supply
Stocking Lake Water Main Stocking Lake Water Main main (2019)

Installed water main on Thicke Road
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Reporting Out

Strategic Priority: Watershed Protection & Water Management
Be leaders, stewards and advocates for securing and protecting Ladysmith’s watershed,
delivery of safe drinking water and responsible management of water resources.

WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO LOOKING AHEAD

Initiate water system improvements Complete construction of new
to provide for adequate and safe water filtration plant (2019)
drinking water to meet the present

and future needs of the Town and its

neighbours

Research watershed security and Continue to take measures for
protection initiatives watershed security/protection
(ongoing)
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Reporting Out

Strategic Priority: Watershed Protection & Water Management

WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO

Continue to provide incentives to
decrease water consumption and
participate in regional water conser-
vation education campaign

66

LOOKING AHEAD

Continue the low flush toilet rebate

Enhance water conservation
communications (ongoing)

Continue participation in regional
water  conservation strategies
(ongoing)

Complete afeasibility study to make
recommendations for increased
water storage at Holland Lake
(2018)

Implement water storage enhance-
ments (beginning 2019)

Begin construction to increase dam
storage (2020)

Install water quality monitoring
equipment at Holland Lake, Stocking
Lake and Chicken Ladder (2020)

Holland to Stocking supply main
design (2019) Begin construction
(2020)
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Reporting Out

Strategic Priority: Communications
Improve community engagement and communications through active collaboration
with partners and investment in information technology.

WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO

Improve community engagement
and communications through
active collaboration with partners
and investment in information tech-
nology. Host semi-annual Town Hall
Meetings

Expand use of technology to deliver
timely information

Maximize use of all Communication
methods, including social media,
newsletters, e-mails and inserts in
utility and tax bills

Identify opportunities for increased
participatory decision making

Enhance communications/engage-
ment with a comprehensive review
of commissions/committees

the Town’s website

Upgrade
including enhanced accessibility for
mobile devices
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WHAT WE DID: 2017

LOOKING AHEAD

of new
registration

Begin implementation
regional recreation
software

Conducted a public consultation
(online, through open house and
with a survey) on keeping backyard
hens

Significantly expanded use of social
media to communicated Town activ-
ities, news and events

Enhance video streaming of Council
Meetings (2018)

Hold a Town Hall Meeting (2018)

Implemented on-line PlaceSpeak
citizen engagement forum

Created a new Town blog, Our
Ladysmith, to connect with
residents, staff and stakeholders.

Hold two candidate information
sessions for the October 20, 2018
election

Adopt a Youth Services strategy
(2018)

Adopt a
(2018-2019)

Public Art Strategy

Undertake a comprehensive review
of commissions and committees
and implement recommendations
(2018)

Upgraded the home page

67

Complete upgrades to the Town’s
website (2018)



Reporting Out

Enhance connection to the community by broadening and strengthening collaboration.

Strategic Priority: Partnerships

Accelerate delivery of strategic objectives by working with others, building internal
and community capacity in the process. Facilitate widespread meaningful involvement.

WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO

Reinvest in the Partnership for an
Economically Vibrant Community
in collaboration with community
partners such as the Ladysmith
Chamber of Commerce, Ladysmith
Downtown Business Association
and Stz’'uminus First Nation

Partner with Stz'uminus First

Nation through joint Council and
Naut’sa Mawt Steering Committee
meetings. Invest in initiatives of

mutual benefit/concern (expand-
edservice agreements, south end
lands, DL 651 and environmental
restoration of Ladysmith Harbour)

WHAT WE DID: 2017

LOOKING AHEAD

Began review of economic develop-
ment strategy for Ladysmith with
support of the CVRD Economic
Development Manager

Complete a new economic develop-
ment strategy with partners (2018)
and implement the strategy (2018
and beyond)

Joint meetings with Stz’'uminus First
Nation continued in 2017

A strong area of emphasis was on
the Waterfront Area Plan project. A
joint project leadership committee
directed work on the project along
with staff and the consulting team

68

Continue Waterfront
Implementation Committee
(ongoing)

Explore opportunities for industrial
development in South Ladysmith
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Reporting Out

Strategic Priority: Partnerships

28

WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO

Implement water and Sewer
agreement with Stz’'uminus First
Nation

Pursue opportunities for First
Nations public art installations and
place acknowledgments

Co-host annual Community-to-
Community Forum event

Update the Memorandum of
Understanding with  Stz’'uminus
First Nation

Articulate and support oppor-

tunities for further partnerships

(economic and social) with

community organizations

Enhance partnership with School
District 68

Resolve nuisance property concerns
through a multi-agency approach

EstablishaCanada 150 Celebrations
Committee
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WHAT WE DID: 2017

LOOKING AHEAD

Implemented the Water and Sewer
agreement with Stz’'uminus First
Nation

Continue to work with Stz'uminus
First Nation to provide town
services as appropriate (ongoing)

Installed the Salish Wind, ared cedar
canoe carved by Stz'uminus artists,
at Transfer Beach in commemora-
tion of Canada 150

Develop a
(2018/2019)

Public Art Strategy

Two Community to Community
Forums were held with Stz’uminus
First Nation.

Hold a Community to Community
Forum (2018). Continue to build trust
and a strong relationship together
(ongoing)

Work has started on this initiative
which continues into 2018.

Develop a new Memorandum of
Understanding with  Stz’'uminus
First Nation (2018)

Implemented Service Agreements
with Ladysmith Resources Centre
Association and Ladysmith and
District Historical Society

Work with Chamber of Commerce,
LDBA and other groups on tourism
marketing and other economic
initiatives

Met with SD 68 representatives
regarding future school needs

Partner with SD 68 to offer trustee
election services during the local
government elections (2018)

Continue to work with the School
District on joint opportunities related
to school sites in Ladysmith.

The Nuisance Committee met on an
as-needed basis

Continue to resolve nuisance
property concerns (ongoing)

Canada 150 Committee installed
banners, red and white lights, and
red and white themed plantings,
and commissioned a Canada 150
Legacy Canoe
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WHAT WE SAID WE'D DO

Establish a Bar Watch Program with
Good Neighbour Agreements

Continue to implement the
Information Technology Strategic
Plan through a partnership with
Municipality of North Cowichan

Partner with Stz'uminus First
Nation, Ladysmith Maritime Society
and government agencies respon-
sible for clean-up of derelict vessels

Reduce curbside contamination of
recyclable materials with Recycle
(formerly Multi-Material) BC

Pursue regional equity in recreation
services

Reporting Out

Strategic Priority: Partnerships

LOOKING AHEAD

Continue the Bar Watch program

Continue to contract with North
Cowichan for the Town’s IT Support

Continue to clean-up derelict and
abandoned vessels in Ladysmith
Harbour (2018)

Continue to encourage reduced
contamination  of  recyclables
(ongoing)

Continue participation in the
Regional Recreation Select
Committee (ongoing)

Support a successful staging of the
2018 BC Summer Games in the
Cowichan Region (2018)

70
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2017/ Financial Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for

FISCAL YEAR ENDING
December 31, 2017/
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Statement of Management’s Responsibility,

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are the responsibility of the management of the Town
of Ladysmith and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with Canadian Public
Sector Accounting standards.

In carrying out its responsibilities, management maintains appropriate systems of internal and administrative
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are executed in accordance with proper
authorization, that assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded, and that financial information produced
is relevant and reliable.

MNP LLP as the Municipality's appointed external auditors, have audited the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Auditor's report is addressed to the Mayor and members of Council and appears on the
following page. Their opinion is based upon an examination conducted in accordance with Canadian Auditing
Standards, performing such tests and other procedures as they consider necessary to obtain reasonable
assurance that the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of material misstatement and present fairly the
financial position and results of the Municipality in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards.

Guillermo Ferrero
Chief Administration Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at December 31,2017

Financial Assets
Cash and short term deposits (Note 3)
Accounts receivable (Note 4)

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Mote 5)
Post-employment benefits (Note 6)
Deferred revenue (Note 7)
Refundable deposits and other (Note 8)
Resfricted reserves - other (Note 9)
Development cost charge reserve (Note 9)
Federal gas tax reserve (Note 11)
Obligations under capital lease (Schedule 1)
Equipment Financing (Note 12 & Schedule 1)
Short term financing (Schedule [11)
Debenture debt (Note 13 & Schedule IV)

Net Financial Assets
MNon-Financial Assets
Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule XI)

Prepaids
Inventory

Accumulated Surplus (Mote 18)

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 14)

Director of Financial Services
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2017 2016
$ 20,440,472 $19,171,188
2.884.198 2,993 892
23,324 670 22,165,080
2,387 417 2 478 417
234,100 250,300
537 531 486,057
560,987 455,147
434,856 425310
2,672,844 1,971,403
1,481 511 1,310,274
- 384,390

350,437 34179

- 670,000

12,229 401 12,855,236
20,898,084 21,320,713
2,426,586 844 367
93,885,690 92,215,270
71,454 112,348
66,390 71,759
94,023,534 92,399 377
$ 96,450,120 $ 93,243,744

See accompanying notes to the financial statements



Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

Revenue
Taxes - (Schedule V)
Sale of Senices (Schedule VI)
[mvestment Income
Licence, Permits, Rentals & Penatties (Schedule VI
rants (Schedule 1X)
Donations and contributed tangible capital assets
{3ain (loss) on foreign exchange
{zain on disposal of tangible capital assets
Development fees
(3as tax funds wtilized (MNote 11)

Expenses
(zeneral government services
Protective services
Transportation services
(3arbage services
Cemetery services
Development serices
Recreation and cuftural services
Parks operation senvices
Sewer
Water

Annual Surplus
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year

Accumulated Surplus - end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

78

Budget
2017 2017 2016
{Note 19)

5 10,148,908 5 10,147 315 % 9,648 476
3,344 924 3,262 006 3,096,166
183,209 118,800 157 817
249 864 f88,a11 247 451
1,917,069 2224 585 1,724,708
335,638 23,500 319,015
(42,008) - (83,675)
1,641 274 - 184,340
- 173,000 -
230,053 63,500 145 233
18,606,832 17,301,517 16,040,030
2 329 962 2581705 2,305,352
1,802 436 1,931, 441 1,739,803
2 145,04 2 336,454 2 000,766
438715 517 496 474,893
36,876 30,372 37374
771,490 874 165 fi12 929
2743912 2780,209 2581754
912 806 990,200 910 233
2 878,730 2847 806 2072169
1,289,564 1,831,064 1,241,378
15,400,562 16730912 13,976,652
3,206,370 570,605 2,083,373
93,243 750 93,243 750 1180 372
$ 06450120 b 93814365 583243750
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31,2017/

Operafing Transactions
Annual Surplus
Less non-cash items included in surplus:
Amortization
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets
Artuarial adjustiments on debenture debt
Contributed tangible ¢ apital assels

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Iventory
A counts payable and acc rued liabilies
Post employment benefits
Defemed revenues
Refundable deposits and other
Restricted resenves
Development cost charge reserve
Gas fa reserve

Cash provided by operating ransacfons

Capital Transactions

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assefs
Cash used fo acquire fangible capital assets

Financing

Proceeds of longHerm financing

Repayment of long-term debt and capital leases
Net (Decrease) Increase in cash from financ ing
Increase in Cash and Short Term Deposits
Cash and Short Term Deposits - Beginning of Year

Cash and Short Term Deposits - End of Year

Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report

2017 2016
§ 3206370 $ 2083378
3,245,199 2.675.406
(1,641,274) (184,840)
(35,790) (30.051)
(319.473) (300,085)
4,455,031 4422909
109,604 (59.655)
40,804 (5,005)
5,350 3033
(90,992) 447924
(16,200) (17,700)
51,474 117,208
105,840 63,427
9,546 (64.960)
701,441 201,531
171.297 249624
5.543.335 5.358.3%
2,273,000 411763
(5.227.872) (5,842.073)
(2.954.872) (5,430.310)
- 6,000,000
(1.319.178) (410,135)
(1,319.178) 5,580,865
1,260,284 5,517,891
19,171,188 13,653,208
§ 20440472 § 19171188

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

Budget
2017 07 2016

(Mote 19)
Annual Surplus § 3206370 § 50605 § 2063378
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (B547345) (13480560)  (6.142158)
Amortization of angible capital assets 3,245,199 2,875,406 2,675,406
Loss (gain) on sale of fangible capital assets (1,641,274) - (184,840)
Proceeds from sale of tangible ¢ apital asses 2,213,000 - 411,763
Decrease (Increase) in inventories 5,360 - 3,033
Decrease (Increase) in prepaids 40,000 - (5.005)
Change in Net Financial Assets 1962219 (10,034,549 (978.423)
Net Financial Assefs, beginning of year 844 %7 1822790
Net Financial Assets, end of year § 2426586 § ¥

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

1. General

The Town of Ladysmith was incorporated in 1904 under the provisions of the British Columbia Municipal Act. Its principal
activities are the provision of local government services in the Town, as governed by the Community Charter and the Local
Government Act.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are anintegral part of these financial statements. They provide detailed informa-
tion and explain the significant accounting and reporting policies and principles that form the basis of these statements. They also
provide relevant supplementary information and explanations which cannot be expressed in the consolidated financial statements.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

It is the Town’s policy to follow Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments and to apply such principles
consistently. The financial resources and operations of the Town have been consolidated for financial statement purposes and
include the accounts of all of the funds of the Town.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting records
revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon the receipt of
goods and services or the creation of an obligation to pay.

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and changes in fund balances and
financial position of the Town. These consolidated financial statements consolidate the following operations:

General Revenue Fund General Capital Fund
Water Revenue Fund Water Capital Fund
Sewer Revenue Fund Sewer Capital Fund

Reserve Fund
(b) Reporting Entity

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the reporting entity. The reporting
entity is comprised of all the funds, agencies, local boards, and committees of the Council which are controlled by the Town. Control
is defined as the power to govern the financial and reporting policies of another organization with the expected benefits or risk of
loss to the Town. The controlled organizations are consolidated after adjusting their accounting policies to a basis consistent with
the accounting policies of the Town. Interfund and intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. The controlled
organizations include DL 2016 Holdings Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Town.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(c) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and are classified according to their functional use. Cost
includes all amounts that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. Donated
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value upon acquisition. Certain tangible capital assets for which historical cost information is
not available have been recorded at current fair market values discounted by a relevant inflation factor. Certain assets are disclosed at a
nominal value as the determination of current fair market value was not available. The Town does not capitalize interest charges as part
of the cost of its tangible capital assets.

Tangible capital assets are amortized over their estimated useful life, with a half-year’s provision in the year of acquisition, on the straight-
line method at the following annual rates:

General Tangible Capital Assets
Land Indefinite
Land Improvements 15to 75 years
Buildings 25to40years

Equipment, Furniture and Vehicles 5 to 60 years

Engineering Structures
Roads and Sidewalks 20to 75 years
Storm and Sewer 25to 75 years
Water 20to80years

Constructions in progress contain capital projects underway but not yet complete or put into use. Once put into use, the asset will be
amortized based on the above annual rates for the applicable category of work performed.

Certain assets have historical or cultural value including works of art, historical documents as well as historical and cultural artifacts that
are not recognized as tangible capital assets because areasonable estimate of the future benefits associated with such property cannot be
made. Intangibles, Crown lands and other natural resources are not recognized as tangible capital assets.

(d) Cash and Short-Term Deposits

Cash and short-term deposits have maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, reported in Canadian funds using the
exchange rate of the prescribed bank as of December 31.

(e) Restricted Reserves and Deferred Revenues

Receipts which are restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external parties are deferred and reported as
restricted reserves. When qualifying expenses are incurred, restricted reserves are brought into revenue at equal amounts, in accordance
with Revenue Recognition policy 2 (h). These revenues are comprised of the amounts shown in Note 9.

Revenues received from non-government sources in advance of expenses which will be incurred in a later period are deferred until the
associated purchase or expense is incurred.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Significant areas
requiring the use of management estimates relate to the collectability of accounts receivable, accrued liabilities, post-employment
benefits, provisions for contingencies and amortization rates, useful lives and salvage values for determining tangible capital asset values.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Liabilities for contaminated sites are estimated based on the best information available
regarding potentially contaminated sites that the Town is responsible for. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in operations in the period
of settlement.

(g) Leases

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to the
ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease
payments are charged to expenses as incurred.

(h) Service Agreements & Rental Payments
Rental payments under operating leases are expensed as incurred.

The Town currently rents property at 132c Roberts Street for office space. The annual rental amount was $ 33,062 ($32,750 - 2016). The
Town also rents property at 17 and 25 Roberts Street for a parking lot. The annual rental amount was $ 7,500 ($7,225 - 2016).

The Town also pays rent on behalf of the Ladysmith Visitors Centers for an office location at 33 Roberts Street. The annual rental amount
was $ 8,400 ($8,400 - 2016) plus $35,000 ($35,000 - 2016) to provide visitor information and business support services.

Two new servicing agreements were signed in 2017 to receive museum and archives services from the Ladysmith and District Historical
Society for $23,500. The second agreement was for various program support for the Ladysmith Resources Centre Association for
$40,500 with an annual increase of 2% per year. Previously, these amounts were considered a grant in aid.

(i) Revenue Recognition

Taxation revenues are recognized at the time of issuing the property tax notices for the fiscal year. Fees and charges revenue are recog-
nized when the services are rendered. Investment income is accrued as earned. Gain on foreign exchange has been recognized in the
Statement of Operations using the exchange rate in effect on December 31, 2017.

Other revenues are recognized when earned in accordance with the terms of the agreement, when the amounts are measurable and when

collection is reasonably assured.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Town recognizes a government transfer as revenue when the transfer is authorized and all eligibility criteria, if any, have been met.
Grants and donations are recognized in the financial statements in the period which the events giving rise to the transfer occur, eligibility
criteria are met, and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made. A government transfer with stipulations giving rise to an obliga-
tion that meets the definition of a liability is recognized as a liability (deferred revenue). In such circumstances, the Town recognizes the
revenue as the liability is settled.

Deferred revenue represents user charges and other fees which have been collected, for which the related services have yet to be
provided. These amounts will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the services are provided.

() Non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of services. They have useful
lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial
assets during the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the change in net financial assets for the year.

(k) Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, determined on an average cost basis.

() Liability for contaminated sites

Aliability for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized at the best estimate of the amount required to remediate the contaminated
site when contamination exceeding an environmental standard exists, the Town of Ladysmith is either directly responsible or accepts
responsibility, it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up, and a reasonable estimate of the amount is determinable. The
best estimate of the liability includes all costs directly attributable to remediation activities and is reduced by expected net recoveries
based on information available at December 31, 2017.

The Town has determined that no owned properties meet the criteria to recognize a liability for contaminated sites.

At each financial reporting date, the Town of Ladysmith reviews the carrying amount of the liability. Any revisions required to the amount
previously recognized is accounted for in the period revisions are made. If applicable, the Town of Ladysmith will recognize the liability
untilit is settled or otherwise extinguished. Disbursements made to settle the liability are deducted from the reported liability when they
are made.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,20187

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

PS 2200 Related Party Disclosures

In March 2015, as part of the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Revisions Release No. 42, the Public Sector Accounting
Board issued a new standard, PS 2200 Related Party Disclosures.

This new Section defines related party and established disclosures required for related party transactions. Disclosure of information
about related party transactions and the relationship underlying them is required when they have occurred at a value different from that
which would have been arrived at if the parties were unrelated, and they have, or could have, a material financial effect on the financial
statements.

This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,2017. Early adoption is permitted.
The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

PS 3210 Assets

In June 2015, new PS 3210 Assets was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook. The new Section provides
guidance for applying the definition of assets set out in PS 1000 Financial Statement Concepts. The main features of this standard are as
follows:

Assets are defined as economic resources controlled by a government as a result of past transactions or events and from which future
economic benefits are expected to be obtained.

Economic resources can arise from such events as agreements, contracts, other government’s legislation, the government’s own legisla-
tion, and voluntary contributions.

The public is often the beneficiary of goods and services provided by a public sector entity. Such assets benefit public sector entities as
they assist in achieving the entity’s primary objective of providing public goods and services.

A public sector entity’s ability to regulate an economic resource does not, in and of itself, constitute control of an asset, if the interest
extends only to the regulatory use of the economic resource and does not include the ability to control access to future economic benefits.

A public sector entity acting as a trustee on behalf of beneficiaries specified in an agreement or statute is merely administering the assets,
and does not control the assets, as future economic benefits flow to the beneficiaries.

An economic resource may meet the definition of an asset, but would not be recognized if there is no appropriate basis for measurement
and areasonable estimate cannot be made, or if another Handbook Section prohibits its recognition. Information about assets not recog-
nized should be disclosed in the notes.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is permitted.
The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

PS 3320 Contingent Assets

In June 2015, new PS 3320 Contingent Assets was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook. The new Section
establishes disclosure standards on contingent assets. The main features of this Standard are as follows:

Contingent assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving uncertainty. That uncertainty will ultimately
be resolved when one or more future events not wholly within the public sector entity’s control occurs or fails to occur. Resolution of the
uncertainty will confirm the existence or non-existence of an asset.

Passing legislation that has retroactive application after the financial statement date cannot create an existing condition or situation at
the financial statement date.

Elected or public sector entity officials announcing public sector entity intentions after the financial statement date cannot create an
existing condition or situation at the financial statement date.

Disclosures should include existence, nature, and extent of contingent assets, as well as the reasons for any non-disclosure of extent, and
the bases for any estimates of extent made.

When a reasonable estimate can be made, disclosure should include a best estimate and a range of possible amounts (or a narrower range
of more likely amounts), unless such a disclosure would have an adverse impact on the outcome.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,2017. Earlier adoption is permitted. The Town does not expect appli-
cation of the new Standard to have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

PS 3380 Contractual Rights

In June 2015, new PS 3380 Contractual Rights was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook. This new Section
establishes disclosure standards on contractual rights, and does not include contractual rights to exchange assets where revenue does
not arise. The main features of this Standard are as follows:

Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will result in both an asset and revenue in
the future.

Until a transaction or event occurs under a contract or agreement, an entity only has a contractual right to an economic resource. Once
the entity has received an asset, it no longer has a contractual right.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Contractual rights are distinct from contingent assets as there is no uncertainty related to the existence of the contractual right.
Disclosures should include descriptions about nature, extent, and timing.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is permitted.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions

In June 2015, new PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook. The new
Section establishes disclosure standards on contingent assets. The main features of this Standard are as follows:

A restructuring transaction is defined separately from an acquisition. The key distinction between the two is the absence of an exchange
of consideration in a restructuring transaction.

A restructuring transaction is defined as a transfer of an integrated set of assets and/or liabilities, together with related program or
operating responsibilities that does not involve an exchange of consideration.

Individual assets and liabilities transferred in a restructuring transaction are derecognized by the transferor at their carrying amount and
recognized by the recipient at their carrying amount with applicable adjustments.

The increase in net assets or net liabilities resulting from recognition and derecognition of individual assets and liabilities received from all
transferors, and transferred to all recipients in a restructuring transaction, is recognized as revenue or as an expense.

Restructuring-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred.

Individual assets and liabilities received in a restructuring transaction are initially classified based on the accounting policies and circum-
stances of the recipient at the restructuring date.

The financial position and results of operations prior to the restructuring date are not restated.

Disclosure of information about the transferred assets, liabilities and related operations prior to the restructuring date by the recipient is
encouraged but not required.

The Section is effective for new restructuring transactions that occur in fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1,2018. Earlier applica-
tion is encouraged.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,201

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

9. Restricted Reserves and Development Cost Charges Reserve

Restricted reserves include Development Cost Charges (DCC's) which are charged to developers and
utilized for infrastructure development. There are two reserves, LRC Capital and B&G Capital for the
replacement of specific building components located at 630 2™ Avenue and 220 High Street.

Balance Balance
Description Dec. 31, 2016 Interest Contributions Expenditures Dec. 31, 2017
DCC - Water & 432,484 $ 3,659 § 124,590 $ = § 560,733
DCC - Parks 354,002 3,428 292,879 - 650,399
DCC - Roads 487,460 4,058 122,884 - 614,402
DCC - Sewer 339,483 3,345 135,049 - 477,877
DCC - Stoarm 357,885 2,694 8,854 - 369,433
1,971,403 17,184 684,256 - 2,672,844
Parking 73,548 555 - - 74,103
Green Streets 1,452 11 - - 1,463
Amphitheatre 17,499 134 700 - 18,333
LRCA/Seniors - Capital 299,718 334 2,480 - 302,531
B&.G - Capital 33,094 269 5,064 - 38,426
425,310 1,302 8,244 - 434,856
TOTAL $ 2,396,713 $ 18,487 $ 692,499 $ = $ 3,107,700

A one-time repayment of $225 366 to the DCC — Parks was made in 2017 to reimburse funds used to
purchase property on Russell Road.

10. Financial Instruments

The Town as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's
opinion the Town is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these
financial instruments, except as otherwise disclosed. The Town is expesed to currency risk on its US
dollar bank account, as described in Note 3. Unless otherwise noted, the fair value of these financial
instruments approximates their carrying values.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Schedules

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017/

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017/

SCHEDULE |
Original Balance Principal Net Balance Interest
Term Amount  Dec 31,2016 Payments Interest™ Dec 31,2017 Rate
Fire Bush Truck 201217 $ 83652 % 7305 § 7305 $ 29 3§ - 1.70%
Spartan Fire Truck 2013-18 452,066 349561 349561 2103 § - 1.70%
P.W. Copier 201217 6,748 810 810 43 - 1.70%
Ricoh Copier - FJCC 201419 8,967 3,980 3,980 23§ : 1.70%
Fitness Equip - FJCC 2014-19 47,765 22735 22735 130 $ - 1.70%

$ 599198 $ 384390 § 384390 § 2288 §

™ Interest, net of actuarial adjustments

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

SCHEDULE lI
Original Balance Principal Net Balance Interest
Term Amount  Dec 31,2016 Payments Interest” Dec 31,2017 Rate
Spartan Fire Truck 2015-20 $ 45132 % 34179 § 8840 § 474§ 25,339 1.39%
Spartan Fire Truck 2017-22 339,806 - 19,705 3523 § 320,191 0.88%
Fitness Equip - FJCC 2017-19 19,509 - 5,601 182 $ 13,907 0.88%

$ 404537 § 34179 § 34146 § 4179 § 350437

M Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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Schedule of Obligations Under Capital Leases

For the Year Ended December 31,2017 -- Schedule |
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Schedule of Short Term Debt

For the Year Ended December 31,2017 -- Schedule |
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Schedule of Debenture Debt

For the Year Ended December 31,2017 -- Schedule |1l
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Schedule of Tax Revenues

For the Year Ended December 31,2017 -- Schedule IV
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Schedule of Fees and Charges

For the Year Ended December 31,2017 - Schedule V
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Schedule of Reserves and Appropriated Equity

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 -- Schedule VI
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Schedule of Restricted Reserves, Reserves & Equity by Fund

For the Year Ended December 31,2017 - Schedule VI
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Schedule of Grant Revenue

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017/ - Schedule VII|
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Statement of Operations by Segment

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017/ -- Schedule IX
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Statement of Operations by Segment

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 -- Schedule IX
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Consolidated Statement of Tangible Capital Assets

For the Year Ended December 31,2017 -- Schedule X
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Consolidated Statement of Tangible Capital Assets

For the Year Ended December 31,2017 -- Schedule X
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2017 Permissive Tax Exemptions
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2017 Grants-in-Aid

Ladysmith Celebrations Society $ 8,000
Ladysmith Festival of Lights Society 12,000
Ladysmith Fire Rescue Santa Parade 1,200
Ladysmith Downtown Business Association - Grand Christmas 1,500
Ladysmith Downtown Business Association - Old Time Christmas 1,500
Stz'uminus First Nation - Aboriginal Days Celebrations 1,200
Old English Car Club - Brits on the Beach Car Show 250
Ladysmith Maritime Society 1,500
Ladysmith Show & Shine 500

Total Celebrations 27,650
Ladysmith & District Marine Rescue Society 2,500

Total Harbour Functions 2,500
Ladysmith & District Historical Society - Industrial Heritage Preservation 7,000
Arts Council of Ladysmith & District - Waterfront Gallery 1,000
Arts Council of Ladysmith & District - Arts on the Avenue 1,500
Ladysmith Community Gardens Society 650
Ladysmith Citizens on Patrol 1,500
Ladysmith Golf Club Society 5,000

Total Other 16,650
Cowichan Family Caregivers Support Society 750
Ladysmith Family and Friends (LaFF) 2,500
St Phillips Anglican Church - Open Table 500

Total Social Services 3,750
Ladysmith Ambassador Program 1,500
Ladysmith Sec School - Frank Jameson Bursary 1,500

Total Youth, Education & Sport 3,000
Waiving of Fees 4,000

TOTAL $ 57,550
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2018 Community Profile
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2018 Community Profile
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2018 Community Profile
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2018 Community Profile

80 Town of Ladysmith 2017 Annual Report 121



2018 Community Profile
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2018 Community Profile
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2018 Community Profile
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2018 Community Profile
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Feedback

We Value Your Feedback

This is a living document, one we will continue to update in response to your input and to changing
circumstances in our community. Share your comments or suggestions by e-mail to info@ladysmith.ca or
by calling City Hall at 250.245.6400.

Citizen and Stakeholder Engagement are Vital

Successful civic engagement ensures that our citizens’ and stakeholders’ views, values, needs and
concerns are identified before and during decision making.

Being a part of this two-way process gives our residents the opportunity to contribute and connect with
the Town. We encourage our citizens to engage their family, friends and colleagues in discussions and
actions that improve our community.

We want to hear what you have to say. Connect with us in the following ways:

Send an E-mail to info@ladysmith.ca

Send a letter to Town of Ladysmith City Hall, Box 220, Ladysmith, B.C. V9G 1A2
Follow us on Facebook www.facebook.com/LadysmithBC

Follow us on Twitter @TownOfLadysmith

Call us 250.245.6400

< MG
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Deliverables for the development of a Public Arts Stratesy in Ladysmith

The Town of Ladysmith seeks to conduct a public process and to develop 2 Community Public
Arts Strategy.

Process Deliverables:

1. Define “Public Arts”, including interior and exterior works
2. Create aninventory of existing public arts:
a. located inthe Town of Ladysmith
b. belonging tothe Town of Ladysmith but located elsewhere or in private hands
c. and/or art to be solicited for donation to the collection of the Town of Ladysmith;
Identify current and potential stakeholders;
Review other communities’ plans and research best practices;
Plan community engagement process for approval in advance;
Conduct community engagement process with current and potential stakeholders;
Propose process for accepting donations and legacy gifts of art to the Town of Ladysmith;
Develop a draft Community Public Arts Strategy including ongoing long-term annual
budget;
9. Present draft Community Public Arts Strategy to the Town of Ladysmith Mayor and
Council and relevant advisory committees;
10. Present draft Community Public Arts Strategy to the public for validation and final
feedback;
11. Prepare the final document in both digital and bound hard copy.

O N AW

Product Deliverables - a draft strategy will include but not be limited to:

The definition of “Public Art™;

Aninventory of existing and potentially public art;

Adirectory of stakeholders including roles and contact information;
A report on the community engagement process and sessions;
Process for accepting donations and legacy gifts;

Recommendations for next steps.

S ol e o

Proposed Timeline:

Project commences September 1,2018
Background research September 1- 302018
Public engagement sessions October 1 - 31,2018
Developing the draft strategy November 1 - 30,2018
Presentations of draft strategy for feedback December 1 - 15,2018
Final document complete December 31,2018
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

BYLAW NQO. 1969

A bylaw to amend “Ladysmith Fees and Charges Bylaw 2008, No. 1644”

The Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting assembled enacts as follows:

1. Delete Schedule “1” of “Ladysmith Fees and Charges Bylaw 2008, No. 1644” and replace
it with the attached Schedule “1”:

2. Citation

This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Ladysmith Fees and Charges Bylaw 2008,
No. 1644, Amendment Bylaw 2018, No. 1969”.

READ A FIRST TIME on the gt day of July ,2018
READ A SECOND TIME on the 9t day of July ,2018
READ A THIRD TIME on the gt day of July ,2018
ADOPTED on the day of s

Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (J. Winter)
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Bylaw No. 1969

Page 2

SCHEDULE “1”

TOWN OF LADYSMITH FEES AND CHARGES BYLAW NO. 1644

Item: Fee:
Miscellaneous Fees:

Copies of Extracts of Minutes $0.25/page
Copies of Bylaws and Council Minutes $0.25/page
Certificate of Outstanding Taxes $20.00
Fence Line Fee $75.00
Topographic Maps $25.00
Waterfront Area Plan $25.00
Holland Creek Area Plan $10.00
South Ladysmith Area Plan $10.00
Official Community Plan (including Schedule A.1 —DPAs) $35.00
Engineering Specifications $30.00
Comfort Letter $100.00
Memorial Park Bench $3,200.00
Zoning Bylaw $40.00
O_fﬁcial Community Plan and Zoning Bylaw Maps (Large $15.00/map
Size)

NSF cheques/Returned items/Stop payments $25.00

Refunds of overpayments for property taxes or user fees

10% of refund amount up to $25

Mortgage listings of property taxes owing (per folio) $3.00
Annual Property tax levies — Vancouver Island Real Estate $450.00
Board

Current year property tax notice after tax due date (for No charge

owner)

Previous years’ property tax notice on year-specific paper
(for owner)

$25.00 per copy

Subdivision trees $750/tree
Application Fees:

Official Community Plan Amendment $2,000i())21;;?r$\lce;tsifsing and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment $2,000£21;?r$\lcegtsi:sing and
Combined OCP/Zoning Bylaw Amendment $3 ’Oog;ii‘é:r;egissi;g and
Subdivision — PLA $500.00 + $250.00/lot
Subdivision — Approval, Extension, Form P $500.00

gl Z\llles{[(;?arlnent Permit- Multi-Unit, Commercial, Downtown, $1,000.00
Development Permit — High Street Intensive Residential $750.00
Development Permit — Riparian, Hazard Lands $250.00
Development Permit — Coach House Intensive Residential $250.00
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Bylaw No. 1965 Page 3
Development Permit- Facade Improvement $100.00
Development Permit- Amendment $100.00

Development Variance Permit

$750.00 + Delivery Costs

Board of Variance $750.00 + Delivery Costs
. $1,500.00 + Advertising and

Temporary Use Permit Delivery Costs

Strata Conversion $500.00 + $250/unit

Boundary Extension Proposal

$2,000.00 + $50.00/hectare plus
advertising and electoral approval

Liquor License Primary Referral Review $2§(())S‘E)SO +
Community Consultation $1,500 + Advertising Costs
ALR Application — Subdivision/Non-Farm Use $600.00 + ALR Fees
ALR Application - Exclusion $2,000.00 + ALR Fees
Film Permit $250.00
Revitalization Tax Exemption Application Fee $250.00

Sign Permit $100.00

Real Estate Sign

$20.00/agency

Temporary Sign/Banner Deposit

$10 + $100 performance bond
per sign/banner

Ladysmith Visioning Report

$25.00

Note: All fees are subject to applicable taxes
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STAFF REPORT TO
COMMITTEE

DATE OF REPORT May 11, 2018
MEETING TYPE & DATE  Regional Services Committee Meeting of May 23, 2018
FrROW: Parks & Trails Division
Land Use Services Department
SUBJECT: E&N Railway Corridor 25 Year License of Occupation Agreement
FILE;
| ”igl;JRPOSEIlNTRODUC:I'VI“QN AAAAAA

The purpose of this report is to seek direction on entering into a 25 year License of Occupat'igﬁ’
Agreement with the Island Corridor Foundation for trail use and development within the E&N

Railway Corridor

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION
That it be recommended to the Board:

That a 25 Year License of Occupation agreement with Island Corridor Foundation, inclusive of the
City of Duncan, Municipality of North Cowichan, Town of Ladysmith and Town of Lake Cowichan,
commencing January 1, 2018, for the purpose of constructing, operating and maintaining a
regional park trail for public use, be approved, and,

That the 25 Year License of Occupation agreement with the Island Corridor Foundation be
forwarded to the City of Duncan, Municipality of North Cowichan, Town of Ladysmith and Town of
Lake Cowichan for their concurrence as signatories to the agreement.

BACKGROUND

Following acquisition of the E&N Railway Corridor in 2006 by the Island Corridor Foundation (ICF),
regional districts along the corridor collaborated with ICF to develop standards and guidelines for
trail development within the rail corridor, leading to creation of the “Vancouver Island Rail Corridor
Rail-with-Trail Design Guidelines” document adopted by all parties in 2009. Through application
of these design guidelines, the Cowichan Valley Regional District has proceeded to construct
sections of the Cowichan Valley Trail within the railway corridor lands, inclusive of Duncan to Lake
Cowichan and sections within the Chemainus—Ladysmith area. Tendering for construction to
complete the rail-with-trail between Saltair and Chemanius is currently proceeding and preliminary
design work is also underway for extending the rail-with-trail south of Chemainus to Westholme in
2019. The Regional District also maintains the Friendship (siiye’yu) Trail within the E&N Railway
Corridor from Duncan to Green Road.

With continued expansion of the CVRD’s trail network within the E&N Railway Corridor, it is timely
that a long-term agreement be secured with the Island Corridor Foundation to secure the viability
and investment of these trails for many years to come for the benefit of Cowichan Valley residents
and visitors to the region. The Capital Regional District and Regional District of Nanaimo have
entered into such license of occupation agreements with the ICF for use of the rail corridor for trail
development, whilst similarly applying the “Vancouver Island Rail Corridor Rail-with-Trail Design
Guidelines” in developing their trail networks within the corridor. The license of occupation
agreement with Nanaimo Regional District also includes those member municipalities through
which the E&N Railway corridor is located as signatories to the agreement. This is due to
provisions of the agreement enabling consideration for location of municipal utility and trail works
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within the corridor, avoiding the necessity of separate agreements for each such application for
use.

ANALYSIS

The proposed License of Occupation agreement between the Island Corridor Foundation and the
CVRD/member municipalities is for a term of 25 years, with provision for a further 25 years through
agreement of all parties. Key highlights of the License of Occupation include:

» Rights to use the corridor to use and occupy a portion> of the railway corridor lands for the
development, operation and maintenance of non-motorized multi-purpose trails.

e Consideration for statutory rights-of-way for local government infrastructure within the
corridor as may be requested by the CVRD and member municipalities, including but not
limited to water, storm drainage, sewers and dyke works.

e Security of trail investment over the term of the License of Occupation by way of any
requirement to relocate approved sections of the frail to accommodate other uses/users
would be at the cost of such future uses/users and not the Regional District.

« Provisions for Third Party Licensees to release, indemnify and save harmless the Regional
District and member municipalities from any and against any claims, etc. as well as
requirements for maintaining liability insurance naming the CVRD and member
municipalities as named insured.

e Review and approval requirements for new trail construction, inclusive of adherence to the
“Vancouver Island Rail Corridor Rail-with-Trail Design Guidelines”, Transport Canada
Regulations relating to public railway crossings and other regulations, bylaws, etc. that
may be applicable.

e A one-time fee of $5,000 to enact the License of Occupation agreement and an annual
license fee equivalent to the property taxes owing annually, unless the ICF has otherwise
been provided an exemption from such property taxes for the year for properties located
within the boundaries of the CVRD and member municipalities.

e A file opening fee of $2,000 for every new application for use of the E&N Railway corridor
lands, with such funds to be applied by ICF towards processing such applications. This
would apply to new sections of rail trail proposed, as well as other uses as permitted under
the License of Occupation agreement. In addition to this file opening fee, the applicant
(i.e., either the CVRD or a member municipality depending on who was applying for a use
within the corridor) would also be subject to reimbursement of any additional costs incurred
by ICF to review the application for use (i.e., consulting engineering fees).

The terms and conditions of the proposed License of Occupation agreement are generally
consistent with the License of Occupation agreements issued by ICF to the Capital Regional
District and Regional District of Nanaimo, inclusive of an annual license fee equivalent to property
taxes owing, unless otherwise provided with such tax exemptions. The terms and conditions are
favourable to the CVRD and member municipalities (City of Duncan, Municipality of North
Cowichan, Town of Ladysmith and Town of Lake Cowichan) with respect to providing for trail and
local government infrastructure use of the rail corridor, inclusive of provisions which provide for
long-term security and relocation at the cost of others if such were required over the duration of
the agreement. The 25 year term with a 25 year renewal clause ensures rail trail investment by
the Regional District will provide a return on investment value benefit for both local residents and
recreation tourism within the region.
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FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The 2018 Regional Parks and Trails Budget includes funds for the one-time administration fee to
enact the License of Occupation agreement with the lIsland Corridor Foundation. To date,
permissive property tax exemptions have been granted to Island Corridor Foundation by the
member municipalities (City of Duncan, Municipality of North Cowichan, Town of Ladysmith and
Town of Lake Cowichan) and the Province of British Columbia. The conditions of the License of
Occupation provide for no annual license fee, as long as such permissive property tax exemptions
continue to be granted in future years.

Where such permissive property tax exemptions may not be granted in future for Island Corridor
Foundation properties covered by License of Occupation agreement (i.e., all such properties
within the boundaries of the CVRD), the Regional District would be subject, under the terms of the
License of Occupation agreement, to paying an annual license fee equivalent to property taxes
owing by lIsland Corridor Foundation for such properties. The funds to pay this property tax
equivalency as a license fee would need to be annually budgeted in Function 280 — Regional
Parks.

Where future improvements within the E & N Corridor under this License of Occupation agreement
(i.e., trails) are to be considered, such budget decisions would be subject to Board approval for
both capital improvements and annual operation/maintenance costs.

COMMUNICATION CONSIDERATIONS

Background information will be provided to CVRD’s member municipalities pertaining to the
proposed License of Occupation agreement with Island Corridor Foundation. Regional District
staff will be available to attend council meetings as necessary to provide additional information if
requested.

STRATEGIC/BUSINESS PLAN CONSIDERATIONS
N/A

Referred to (upon completion):

O Community Services (Island Savings Centre, Cowichan Lake Recreation, South Cowichan
Recreation, Arts & Culture, Public Safety, Facilities & Transit)

X Corporate Services (Finance, Human Resources, Legislative Services, Information Technology,
Procurement)

[0 Engineering Services (Environmental Services, Recycling & Waste Management, Water
Management)

[ Land Use Services (Community Planning, Development Services, Inspection & Enforcement,
Economic Development, Parks & Trails)

[ Strategic Services

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

i

.
i Z

(

Brian Farquhar Not Applicable
Manager Nat Applicable

pim

RosgBfackwell, MCIP, RPP, A.Ag.
General Manager
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ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A — License of Occupation Agreement island Corridor Foundation
Attachment B — Map location of E & N Railway Corridor lands within the CVRD
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Attachment A

LICENCE OF OCCUPATION

THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the day of _ , 2018

BETWEEN:
ISLAND CORRIDOR FOUNDATION
{inc. No. 419938-3)

320 - 256 Wallace Drive
Nanaimo, B.C. VSR 5B3

{the "Grantor")

OF THE FIRST PART

AND:
COWICHAN VALLEY REGIONAL DISTRICT
175 Ingram Street
Dunean, B.C. VOL 1N3

{the "CVRD")
CITY OF DUNCAN
200 Craig Street
Duncan, B.C. VOL 1W3
(the “City of Duncan”)
MUNICIPALITY OF NORTH COWICHAN
7030 Trans-Canada Highway, Box 278
Duncan, B.C. VOL3X4
(the “Municipality of North Cowichan”)
TOWN OF LAKE COWICHAN
39 South Shore Road, PO Box 860

Lake Cowichan, B.C. VOR 2G0

(the “Town of Lake Cowichan”)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
410 Esplanade, PO Box 220
Ladysmith, B.C. V9G 1A2
(the “Town of Ladysmith”)

(collectively the “Grantees” and
individually the “Grantee”)

OF THE SECOND PART

WHEREAS:

A.

The Grantor is the owner of lands legally described as set out in Schedule "A" attached to
and forming part of this Agreement and containing the historical E&N Rail Line;

(the "Lands");
The Grantees have requested that the Grantor grant a licence to use and occupy a portion
of the Lands for the purposes of constructing, operating and maintaining a multi-purpose

regional park trail for public use;

The Grantor has agreed to grant to the Grantees a Licence of Occupation over a portion
of the Lands on the terms hereinafter set forth.

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that in consideration of the premises and
covenants contained in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree with each other as follows:

1.0

1.1

DEFINITIONS
In this Agreement the following terms mean as follows:

(a) “Lake Cowichan Sub” means the area of the Lands between Duncan and Lake
Cowichan identified as the Lake Cowichan Sub in Schedule A;

(b) “Motor Assisted Cycle” means a motor assisted cycle that meets the requirements
of the Motor Assisted Cycle Regulation, B.C. Reg. 151/2002 made pursuant to the
Motor Vehicle Act, except that it may have four wheels that come in contact with
the ground;
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1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

{c} "Multi-purpose Use" means uses of the Trail by members of the public on foot,
horseback, bhicycle or by way of other non-motarized vehicle or Motor Assisted
Cycle;

(d) “Third Party Licensee” means a person given permission by the Grantor to

construct and use a Crossing over a portion of the Trail, as contemplated under
section 4.2 of this Agreement, but does not include any of the following: a local
government {including one or more of the Grantees), BC Hydro, Telus, Fortis BC,
or any other public or private utility using the Lands for the purpose of electrical,
telephone, telecommunication, gas distribution, or other utility works or services;
and

(e) "Trail' means the trail for Multi-purpose Use constructed, operated  and
maintained by the Grantees on a portion of the Lands existing on either side of
the central rail corridor, or as otherwise aligned on untracked portions of the
Lands by mutual agreement, and within which the typical trail surface will be four
metres in width within a typical five to eight metres (5 - 8m) wide Trail corridor.

For the purposes of this Agreement, but subject to section 2.1, the local government
boundaries of the Cowichan Valley Regional District will be considered to include only
that part of the Cowichan Valley Regional District within the boundaries of an electoral
area.

RIGHT TO USE

For the purposes of this section, the rights granted to the Grantees shall be interpreted
as the right of each Grantee on that portion of the Lands contained within the local
government boundaries of each of the Grantees’ local government. For certainty, the
Grantee, Cowichan Valley Regional District, may exercise its rights under this Agreement
within any part of the Lands over which the Cowichan Valley Regional District has
established a parks and trail service.

The Grantor grants to the Grantees, subject to the performance and observance by the
Grantees of the terms, conditions, covenants and agreements contained in this
Agreement, a non-exclusive right by way of licence allowing the Grantees to enter on the
Lands and to install, construct, operate, maintain and repair the Trail.

The Grantor grants to the Grantees, their officers, servants, agents, employees,
contractors and subcontractors the right to do all acts, things and matters necessary for
or incidental to the installation, construction, operation, replacement, maintenance and
repair of the Trail.

The Grantor grants to the Grantees and the Grantees’ elected officials, officers, agents,
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

employees, contractors, subcontractors and licencees, the right to pass and repass, with
or without motorized vehicles, along and upon portions of the Lands necessary to access
the Trail and Utilities, and along and upon the Trail for the purposes of installation,
construction, operation, replacement, maintenance and repair of the Trail, including but
not limited to the removal of any trees from the Lands that the Grantees may from time
to time determine are hazardous and present a danger to users of the Trail.

The Grantor grants to the Grantees and the Grantees’ invitees and licencees, including
members of the public, the right to pass and repass on foot, horseback, bicycle or by way
of any other wheeled non-motorized device or Motor Assisted Cycle, along and upon that
portion of the Lands necessary to access the Trail and along and upon the Trail upon terms

and conditions set by the Grantees.

The Grantor shall consider granting to the Grantees, upon request by the Grantees, a
statutory right of way for local government infrastructure including but not limited to
water, storm drainage, sewers and dikes and all fixtures, fittings, pumps, valves, electrical
lines and appurtenances thereto.

The Grantor and Grantees agree that the Grantees will submit to the Grantor all plans for
the construction of segments of the Trail for approval by the Grantor, which will not be
unreasonably withheld. The Grantor and Grantees also agree that any trails constructed
at the time this Agreement is signed will be deemed to have been approved by the
Grantor.

The Grantor and Grantees further agree that if at any time during the Term or any
Renewal term, if it is necessary for the Grantor to use any of the Lands upon which an
approved Trail or other trail improvements are located for railway operations, the
Grantor, at its sole discretion shall have the right to relocate the Trail or any portion
thereof and any other Trail improvements to another section of the Lands.

Any relocation of the Trail constructed in accordance with the trail setback and separation
guidelines as outlined in Section 6 of the Vancouver Island Rail Corridor Rail-with-Trail
Design Guidelines — June 2009 will be at the sole expense and cost of the Grantor. Any
relocation of the Trail that is not constructed in accordance with the trail setback and
separation guidelines as outlined in Section 6 of the Vancouver Island Rail Corridor Rail-
with-Trail Design Guidelines — June 2009 will be at the sole expense and cost of the
Grantees.
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3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

QUIET ENJOYMERNT

The Grantor covenants and agrees to and with the Grantees that the Grantees may
neaceably hold and enjoy the rights granted in this Agreement.

THIRD PARTY INTERESTS

Subject to section 4.2, the Grantor reserves to itself from the grant and covenants made
by it to the Grantees under section 2.0, the right for the Grantor, its agents, employees,
lessees, contractors, subcontractors and licensees to have full and complete access to the
Trail to carry out any operations associated with the Grantor's or other licensees' use of
the Trail during the Term or Renewal Term of this Agreement, provided that such access
and use does not damage, or unreasonably disrupt or interfere with the Grantees’ Trail.

If the Grantor enters into an agreement with any Third Party Licensee for the occupation
and use of a portion of the Trail (such portion referred to herein as a “Crossing”), including
but not limited to the grant of a licence to construct and use a driveway access or crossing
for motor vehicles, or a Crossing for utilities or services such as a water line or stormwater
works, the terms of the agreement with the Third Party Licensee must include provisions
requiring the Third Party Licensee to:

(a) release, indemnify and save harmless the Grantees from any and against any
claims, demands, suits, actions, awards, proceedings and judgments arising from
the use of the Crossing by the Third Party Licensee or any invitee of the Third Party
Licenseeg;

(b) construct and maintain the Crossing in accordance with specifications and
standards for such Crossings that the Grantor and the Grantees may from time
time agree upon; and

(c) maintain liability insurance against third party claims arising from the operation
and Crossing that is the subject of the licence, with inclusive limits of not less than
Two Million ($2,000,000.00) Dollars for bodily injury, including death and property
damage, and naming the Grantee as an additional insured.

The Grantor shall provide the Grantees with advance notice of the Grantor’s intention to
enter into an agreement with a Third Party Licensee under section 4.2, including a copy
of the proposed agreement and specifications for the proposed Crossing, and shall
provide the Grantees with a reasonable opportunity to comment on the proposed
Crossing.

A copy of the Grantees’ form of release and indemnity is attached a Schedule “D" to this
Agreement.
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4.5

5.0

51

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

The Grantor shall use reasonable efforts to facilitate the requirements of section 4.2(a-c)
of this Agreement on granting a new Crossing, but nothingin this Agreement shall impose
of create liability on the Grantor if a Third Party Licensee fails to enter into, maintain or
comply with the requirements of 4.2(a-c).

PLANS AND DRAWINGS

The Grantees shall provide to the Grantor, at no cost to the Grantor, copies of any as-built
drawings, plans or surveys produced, commissioned or otherwise acquired by the
Grantees in the course of the Grantees’ exercise of their rights under this Agreement, that
show the extent and location of the portion of the Lands being used by the Grantees for
the purpose of the Trail, as well as any improvements installed or constructed by the
Grantees. A reduced copy of such drawings, plans or surveys shall be deemed to form
part of this Agreement upon written agreement of the parties.

Any and all plans, drawings, trail designs and construction of the Grantee’s shall comply
with any and all applicable laws, statutes, regulations, regulatory directives, by-laws,
licenses and permits, including without limitation, Transport Canada’s most current draft
of RTD-10 Regulation relating to public railway crossings.

CONSIDERATION

Within seven (7) days of the date of this agreement, the Grantee shall pay the Grantor a
one-time Administrative Fee of Five Thousand ($5,000.00) Dollars, plus any applicable
Goods and Services Tax, to offset the Grantor's anticipated costs of administering this
Agreement over the Term.

In consideration of the rights of the Grantees under this Agreement, in each year of this
Agreement each of the Grantees shall pay to the Grantor an amount equivalent to the
real property taxes payable by the Grantor to that Grantee, upon receipt from the Grantor
of a copy of the Real Property Tax Notice confirming the amount of real property taxes
owing with respect to such of the Lands which are not tax exempt (the “Annual Licence
Fees”). For certainty, if the Grantor is exempt from real property taxation within the
boundaries of a Grantee’s local government, no Annual Licence Fee shall be payable by
that Grantee.

The parties agree that, except as set out in section 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3, no further fees or
charges whatsoever shall be owing from the Grantees to the Grantor in consideration of
the Grantees’ rights under this Agreement.

Notwithstanding section 6.3, any new application by the Grantee for any use of the
corridor (including but not limited to new trails) will be accompanied by a file opening fee
of Two Thousand ($2,000.00) Dollars plus any applicable Goods and Services Tax, payable
to the Grantor to allow the Grantor to process applications. In addition to the foregoing,
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6.5

6.6

6.7

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

the Grantee shall be responsible to reimburse the Grantor (and Grantor's rail operator}
for all costs of reviewing applications by the Grantee including, but not limited to,
engineering fees. The Grantee agrees in advance to a $2,000.00 plus GST fixed cost
for the Grantor's engineer to review trail applications and a variable cost for any
crossings by the Trail over the track to be reviewed by the Grantor’s engineer. Further
increases in the file opening fee will be subject to the approval of the Island Corridor
Foundation Board, acting reasonably. Subsequent to the completion of this due diligence
and the Grantor approving the use contemplated by the review, there will be no further
fees, rentals or other charges levied by the Grantor on that use.

Provided the Fees are paid when due, the Grantor agrees to waive all railway crossing
fees for the Trail except for fees payable for road crossings which are otherwise payable
by any of the Grantees under a separate agreement.

The Grantor agrees to waive all fees for new railway crossings established by the Grantor
as of the date of this Agreement, including those for road crossings, which would
otherwise be payable by any of the Grantees; provided however, that this waiver does
not include any costs relating to the design, development or construction of a railway
crossing.

The Grantees will not be responsible to pay real property taxes related to future Third
Party Licensees or lessees that may be granted rights by the Grantor to use the Lands,
including rights granted under or over the Trail area of the Lands.

TERM

The term of the licence granted under this Agreement shall be from the 1% day of January
2018, to the 315t day of December 2043 (the "Term"), with a right by mutual consent to
renew for a further twenty-five (25) year term (the "Renewal Term"), unless earlier
terminated pursuant to this Agreement.

GRANTEES' COVENANTS
For the purposes of this paragraph:

(a) "Guidelines" mean the construction guidelines for the Trail, including

requirements as to its width, depth and materials attached here to as Schedule
"B”.
(b) "Plans" mean the design drawings created for each phase of the Trail

construction:
(H containing the construction details of the Trail including its width, depth,

and the material which will be used in its construction;
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8.2

8.3

(i)  showing the location of the Trail on the Lands; and

(iii)  containing any requirements of the Grantor reasonably required during
the construction, maintenance, repair, relocation or removal of the Trail
for the protection of its property or railway operation;

reduced copies of which shall be deemed to form part of this Licence and be
attached hereto as Schedule "C" upon written agreement of the parties.

The Grantees covenant and agree to and with the Grantor that the Grantees:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

may, in-accordance with the Plans and Guidelines, approved by the Grantor in
writing, and where such approval may permit the Trail to be constructed to higher
standards than those contained in the Guidelines, construct a Trail within the
physical boundaries of the Grantees’ local government and if constructed, shall
maintain or cause to be maintained, the Trail in a good and workmanlike manner
in order to cause no unnecessary damage or disturbance to the Grantor or the
Lands;

shall carry out construction of the Trail so as not to adversely affect the drainage
of the Lands and to not redirect or increase the quality or velocity of surface water
runoff or any streams into the Grantor's drainage system or upon the railway
tracks or other lands and facilities of the Grantor;

shall keep and maintain at its cost and expense the Trail and all its parts in good
order and condition and in a structurally sound manner such that the existence
and use of the Trail shall not interfere with the Grantor's use of its Lands and its
railway operations on the Lands; and to do all repairs in all respects to a standard
at least equal in quality of material and workmanship to the original material and
work;

shall remove and discharge or cause to be removed or discharged promptly at its
cost and expense any lien, encumbrance or charge upon the Lands which arises
out of the use of the Lands under this Licence by the Grantees or by reason of
labour or material furnished or claimed to have been furnished for any
construction maintenance or repair of the Trail; and

shall repair, or cause to be repaired at its expense, any damage done to the track,
the ballast or to any property of the Grantor by the construction, operation,
maintenance, repair, relocation or removal of the Trail or any part thereof.

LAKE COWICHAN SUB

In addition to the other covenants of the Grantees under this Agreement, the Grantees
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shall have the following additional obligations with respect to the Lake Cowichan Sub,
where the Grantor's railway will not be operating:

(a) the Grantees shall be responsible for the maintenance of all Trails, trees, culverts
and drainage on all of the Lands within the Lake Cowichan Sub where such
maintenance is considered by the Grantees to be necessary for the maintenance
ofthe Trails, and in exercising its responsibilities under this provision the Grantees
may do all acts, things and matters necessary for or incidental to the installation,
construction, operation, replacement, maintenance and repair of any works the
Grantees consider to be necessary for that purpose.

5.0 RELEASE AND INDEMNITY

9.1  No Grantee shall make a claim or demand against the Grantor or any of the Grantor's
employees, representatives or agents, for any injury, loss or damage, including injury
resulting in death, loss of or damage to property suffered or sustained by the Grantees or
the Grantees’ employees, representatives, agents or invitees, caused by or arising out of
or connected directly or indirectly with this Agreement or anything done or not by as
required hereunder unless such injury, loss or damage is caused by or arises out of the
gross negligence or wrongful act or omission of the Grantor or the Grantor's employees,
representatives, licensees, tenants or agents or a railway operation malfunction or
accident not caused by the Grantor's negligence.

9.2  Each Grantee shall indemnify and save harmless the Grantor from and against any and all
claims, demands, awards, actions, proceedings and judgments by whomsoever made,
brought or prosecuted (collectively "Claims"), and from and against any and all injury,
loss, damage, costs or expense (collectively "Damages") suffered or incurred by the
Grantor, the Grantor's employees, representatives, licensees, agents, tenants or invitees
entering upon that portion of the Lands within the Grantee's local government
boundaries, and which are based upon, arise out of or are connected directly or indirectly
with this Agreement or anything done hereunder or anything not done as required
hereunder, unless such Claims or Damages are caused by or arise out of the gross
negligence or the wrongful act or omission of the Grantor or the Grantor's employees,
representatives licencees, tenants, invitees or agents.

9.3 For greater certainty, the provisions of sections 9.1 and 8.2 do not limit the obligation of
a Third Party Licensee to indemnify the Grantees in accordance with section 4.2 of this
Agreement.

10.0 INSURANCE

10.1 Each Grantee will maintain at its sole cost and expense, in good standing for the Term or
Renewal Term (or any extension thereof), liability insurance against third party claims
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arising from the operation and use of a portion of the Trail within the local government
boundaries of the Grantee with inclusive limits of not less than Five Million
($5,000,000.00) Dollars for bodily injury, including death and property damage, and in
that event, the Grantees will, on request from the Grantor, provide the Grantor with
evidence that such insurance is, at all times during the Term or Renewal Term (or any
extension thereof}, enforceable and in effect.

TERMINATION

Except as hereinafter provided, upon breach by any one of the Grantees of any of the
provisions herein contained which breach is not remedied by that Grantee within sixty
(60) days from the date of registered notice thereof mailed by the Grantor to that Grantee
(the “Breach Notice”), the Grantor may bring a claim for damages or avail itself of any
other remedy which it may have without further notice against that Grantee; or terminate
this Agreement in respect of that portion of the Trail within the local government
boundaries of that Grantee, if the breach continues for one hundred and twenty (120)
days after written notice from the Grantor to that Grantee of its intention to terminate
this Agreement, provided always that if the Grantee commences to remedy the breach
within sixty (60) days of receipt of notice aforesaid and thereafter diligently and
continuously proceeds with the remedial action, the Grantor shall not bring any claim or
exercise any other remedies which it may have in respect of such breach provided such
breach is remedied within one hundred and twenty (120) days from the date the remedial
action is begun.

If the Grantor notifies a Grantee of a breach of this Agreement and of its intention to
terminate this Agreement under section 11.1 in respect of that portion of the Trail within
the local government boundaries of that Grantee, the Grantor must also notify each of
the other Grantees and any of the Grantees may, at their option, take steps to remedy
the breach of which the Grantor has provided notice.

In the event that any of the Grantees who are not in default choose to take steps to
remedy a breach of which the Grantor has provided notice in accordance with Article
11.1, the said Grantee(s) must give written notice to the Grantor of that Grantee’s
intention to remedy the breach, and if such Grantee commences to takes action to
remedy the breach within thirty (30} days of such notice and thereafter diligently pursues
action to remedy the breach, the Grantor shall not bring any claim or exercise any other
remedies which it may have, provided the breach is remedied within sixty (60) days from
the date the remedial action commenced.

NO ASSIGNMENT

The Grantees covenant and agree to and with the Grantor that the Grantees shall not
assign or sublet the right granted herein without the written consent of the Grantor.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

The Grantees shall abide by and comply with all the lawfui bylaws, rules and regulations
of the Province of British Columbia, every municipality or other lawful authority which in
any manner relate to or affect the Lands and the right hereby granted insofar as the
Grantees is subject hereto.

OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS

Any and all Trail improvements brought onto, laid or erected upon or buried under the
Lands by the Grantees shall immediately be and become the Grantor’s property without
compensation to the Grantees. Except to the extent otherwise expressly agreed by the
Grantor in writing, no such Trail improvements shall be removed by the Grantees from
the Lands either during or at the expiration or sooner termination of the Term or Renewal
Term of this Agreement, except that:

(a) The Grantees shall at the end of the Term or Renewal Term of this Agreement
remove such of the Trail improvements as the Grantor requires to be removed
(except for Trail bed and Trail surface materials such as gravel or asphalt, which
may remain in place) and any such removal shall be completed in accordance with
sub-section 16.2 below.

REGISTERED INSTRUMENT

In the event that the Grantor intends to transfer or lease its Lands, the Grantor agrees to
advise the prospective purchaser or Leasee of this Licence of Occupation and the Grantor
agrees to register against title to the Lands a Lease in substantially the same terms as this
Agreement for the remainder of the Term or Renewal Term for the purpose of a Trail in
favour of the Grantees in advance of the transfer or the leasing occurring. Further, the
Grantor agrees to notify the Grantees in the event that the Grantor learns of any
proceedings against it which may result in the Grantor losing its interest in the Lands and
will, where possible, grant to the Grantees a Lease in substantially the same terms as this
Agreement for the remainder of the Term or Renewal Term over its Lands for the
purposes of the Trail.

GENERAL PROVISIONS
Notices: It is hereby mutually agreed:

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to be sufficiently
given:
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(a) to be delivered at the time of delivery and

(b) if mailed from any government post office in the Province of British Columbia by
prepaid registered mail addressed as follows:

(i) if to the Grantor:

Island Corridor Foundation
320 - 256 Wallace Drive
Nanaimo, B.C. VSR 5B3

(ii)  iftothe Grantees:

Cowichan Valley Regional District
175 Ingram Street
Duncan, B.C. VIL 1N8

City of Duncan
200 Craig Street
Duncan, B.C. V9L 1W3

Municipality of North Cowichan
7030 Trans-Canada Highway, Box 278
Duncan, B.C. V9L 3X4

Town of Lake Cowichan
39 South Shore Road, PO Box 860
Lake Cowichan, B.C. VOR 2G0

Town of Ladysmith
410 Esplanade, PO Box 220
Ladysmith, B.C. V9G 1A2

and any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to and received by the addressee
on the date of personal delivery or three (3) days after the mailing thereof, postage
prepaid and registered, as the case may be. Any party may at any time and from time to
time notify the other in writing as to a change of address and the new address to which
notices shall be given to it until further changed.

Removal Upon Termination of Agreement: The Trail placed, erected or built on the Lands

atthe expense of the Grantees will if required by the Grantor, be removed from the Lands
by the Grantees within sixty (60) days after termination or surrender of this Agreement
(except for Trail bed and Trail surface materials such as gravel or asphalt, which may
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remain in place) and the Grantees will leave the Lands neat, clean, level, free and clear of
all waste material, debris and rubbish all to the satisfaction of the Grantor. The Grantees
covenant that if they are required to remove the Trail they will make good all damage
caused to the property of the Grantor by reason of such removal and if such Trail is not
so removed by the Grantees and the Lands not left neat, clean, level, free and clear of all
waste material, including landscaping and trees, debris and rubbish as aforesaid (except
for Trail bed and Trail surface materials such as gravel or asphalt, which may remain in
place) within the said period of sixty (60) days, the Grantor may carry out such work and
the Grantees will pay to the Grantor all costs and expenses reasonably incurred in so
doing. In the event that the Grantor determines that the continued presence of the Trail
does not constitute a hazard of interference with the rail operations of the Grantor, then
the Grantees may abandon the Trail in place, in which case it will become the Grantor's
unencumbered property.

Grantees’ Right Non-Exclusive: The Grantees agree that their right to use the Lands
pursuant to this Agreement is non-exclusive and acknowledges that the Grantor has in
the past, and may in the future, enter into agreements with other persons ("Third
Parties”) to occupy and use the tands for any and all additional purposes, for
communication purposes, for the installation of utilities and cables (below and above
ground), for landscaping, and for vehicular use and driveways, and that such Third Parties
may be permitted to occupy portions of the Lands provided that all such uses shall not
create hazards or unreasonably interfere with or prohibit the use of the Lands by the
Grantees, their elected official officers, employees, contractors, licensees, agents and
members of the public as contemplated under this Agreement and the Grantor shall
provide as built drawings of the Third Party works to the Grantees affected.

Temporary or Permanent Relocation to Accommodate Third-Party Uses: If the Grantor
enters into agreements with Third Parties to occupy and use the Lands and requests that
the Grantees relocate temporarily or permanently all or part of the Trail, such temporary
or permanent relocation will be at the cost of the Grantor, and only if the design
requirements of the Trail can be met and the continuity of the Trail preserved.

Gender and Construction: Wherever the singular or masculine is used in this Agreement
the same shall be deemed to include the plural or the feminine, or the body politic or
corporate, also the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties
hereto and each of them (where the context or the parties so require).

Time of Essence: Time is to be the essence of this Agreement.

Enurement: This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, administrators, executors, successors, and permitted
assignees.
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Waiver: The waiver by a party of any failure on the part of the other party to perform in
accordance with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement is not to be construed
as a waiver of any future or continuing failure, whether similar or dissimilar.

Headings: The headings in this Agreement are inserted for convenience and reference
only and in no way define, limit or enlarge the scope or meaning of this Agreement or any
provision of it. :

Remedies Cumulative: No remedy under this Agreement is to be deemed exclusive but
will, where possible, be cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity.

Applicable Law: This Agreement is to be construed in accordance with and governed by
the laws applicable in the Province of British Columbia.

No Partnership, Etc.: No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to create a
partnership or joint venture relationship, an employer-employee relationship, a landlord-
tenant, or a principal-agent relationship.

Amendments: This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by the written
agreement of the parties.

Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding of
the parties with respect to the matters contemplated by this Agreement and supersedes
all prior and contemporaneous agreements between them with respect to such matters.

Survival of Representations: All representations and warranties set forth in this
Agreement and all provisions of this Agreement, the full performance of which is not
required prior to a termination of this Agreement, shall survive any such termination and
be fully enforceable thereafter.

Notification of Violation: Each party shall promptly notify the other party of any matter
which is likely to continue or give rise to a violation of its obligations under this
Agreement.

Whole Agreement: The whole agreement between the parties is set forth in this
document and no representations, warranties or conditions, express or implied, have
been made other than those expressed.

Severability: Each article of this Agreement shall be severable. If any provision of this
Agreement is held to be illegal or invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, the
provision may be severed and the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the
remainder of this Agreement.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterpart with the same effect as if

130 456/ 18.03.09 / Licence of Occupation/ V6 / PJ-hw

156




-15-

both parties had signed the same document. Each counterpart shall be deemed to be an
original. All counterparts shall be construed together and shall constitute one and the
same Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands and seals as of the day and year
first above written.

ISLAND CORRIDOR FOUNDATION
by its authorized signatories:

Name:

Name:

COWICHAN VALLEY REGIONAL DISTRICT
by its authorized signatories:

Name:

Name:

CITY OF DUNCAN
by its authorized signatories:

Name:

L s L W P

Name:

MUNICIPALITY OF NORTH COWICHAN
by its authorized signatories:

Name:

— S et Mt et
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Name:

TOWN OF LAKE COWICHAN

by its authorized signatories:

Name:

Name:

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

by its authorized signatories:

Name:

Name:

— e e Nt e e e N
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STAFF REPORT TO
COMMITTEE

DATE OF REPORT June 5, 2018

MEETING TYPE & DATE  Regional Services Committee Meeting of June 27, 2018

FROM: Community Planning Division
Land Use Services Department
SURJECT: Cowichan 2050: Request for Endorsement
FILE:
P PURPOSEIINTRODUCT!ON t
The purpose of thls report is to request endorsement of the Cow1chan 2050 regronat plann|ng
framework.
RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION

That it be recommended to the Board:
1. That the Cowichan 2050 regional planning framework be endorsed,
2. That the Chair is authorized to sign the “Call to Action”, and

3. That staff be directed to develop a framework of financial and staff mechanisms to continue
this initiative into the future, through the budget process.

‘BACKGROUND

The CVRD has struggled to develop a regtonal plannlng framework that reflects the priorities and |

concerns of the multiple communities and interests within the region. In 2010, the CVRD
embarked on the development of a Regional Sustainability Strategy. The nature of the project
has been modified over time. In 2012, the project was referred to as an Integrated Regional
Sustainability Plan. In late 2013, the name of the project became “Sustainable Cowichan:
Regional Sustainability & Climate Action Strategy.” Funding for this project was received from the
UBCM Regionally Significant Projects Fund (Gas Tax funding).

As reported at the November 29, 2017 meeting of the CVRD’s Regional Services Committee, the
consulting firm of EcoPlan International was hired to assist in the development of a strategy that
would prepare the region for the challenges to be faced in the foreseeable future, i.e. by 2050.
This strategy would provide a comprehensive overview of the social, environmental and
economic forces shaping the region and insights into how local governments within the CVRD
can best collaborate to manage change and anticipated growth. The project’s outcomes were
intended to include:

1. A relationship-building process to support more collaborative regional planning,
and

2. A high-level policy document that established a guiding framework for better
coordination on region-wide development issues.

The key planning challenges that need a regional approach include:

1. Climate change: water issues, sea level rise, increased incidence of drought;
2. Growth management: projected population increases;
3. Changing governance structures: pdi&@®al restructuring of municipal governance,
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potential settiement of treaties, potential for increased role of First Nations with regard to
land management powers.

But there are others as well, such as the region’s vulnerabilities in terms of solid waste
management, availability of water regionally, and other matters that require attention.

The process that was used to develop the Cowichan 2050 regional planning framework included:

e Multiple CVRD project task force meetings;

e Three Regional Working Group meetings, held on November 24, 2017; February 16,
2018; and April 20, 2018;

e Presentations to municipal councils, First Nations, and School District #79 Board; and

o An Elected Officials Forum, held on May 11, 2018.

At each of these meetings and presentations, important questions were raised, leading to
refinement in the ideas, approaches, and ultimately, the final products.

The Elected Officials Forum participants felt that the Cowichan 2050 process reflected a positive
way forward for the region, and encouraged staff to bring the documents forward to the various
local government bodies for review and endorsement.

‘ Sl | . ! . o .
The Cowichan 2050 vision, taken from the Cowichan Visions 2020 process (originally developed
in 1992), is as follows: The people of the Cowichan Region work together to collectively take
responsibility for a caring, safe, prosperous, diverse, ecologically sound community and ensure

opportunities for current and future generations.

This vision has stood the test of time, and based on the analysis of the various documents (most
of which had significant public input), continues to reflect the visions of the people of the
Cowichan region.

The Cowichan 2050 regional planning framework, at this early stage, is made up of three
documents:

1. “Call to Action” — A document that commits the municipal councils and regional board to
continue to collaborate on matters of regional concern;

2. “Regional Working Group Scope of Work” — A document that outlines the structure around
how regional collaboration will take place moving forward; and

3. “Backgrounder” — A document that highlights shared policy objectives from approximately
300 planning documents prepared in the region over the past 30 years, and identifies
areas where the region would benefit from more fulsome collaboration.

These documents emerged from discussions and direction received throughout the process,
including the Elected Officials Forum.

The completion of the three documents making up the regional planning framework essentially
completes “Phase 1” of the Cowichan 2050 project. On a going forward basis, as called for in the
documents, the CVRD has been identified as the ongoing convenor for the Cowichan 2050
process. At a minimum, this work will require scheduling and facilitating future meetings of the
Regional Working Group, anticipated to be held on a quarterly basis. Doubtless there will be
additional work, such as convening of subcommittees, making presentations to First Nations and
other regional bodies, and undertaking policy research and development.

Within the CVRD, the Community Planning unit is best positioned to continue the work of
Cowichan 2050.
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FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The current mandate of Community Planning is to plan for the CVRD’s unincorporated areas,
whereas Cowichan 2050 is a regional initiative involving municipalities as well as unincorporated
areas. The costs for this work should not be borne solely by residents in unincorporated areas.

Moving ahead with Cowichan 2050 will require that a source of funding be identified for the
Community Planning Division to be able to carry out this work.

COMMUNICATION CONSIDERATIONS

The CVRD’s website will be updated to showcase progress on the Cowichan 2050 project,
including copies of the three documents. As the various jurisdictions endorse the project, this
information may be added.

STRATEGIC/BUSINESS PLAN CONSIDERATIONS |

The CVRD Board’s #1 regional strategic focus area is “Excellence in Regional Land Use
Planning,” which involves the development of “a regional planning strategy that addresses a
range of land use issues and influences across all municipalities and electoral areas to ensure
sustainable and coordinated management of growth and development.”

With the completion of Phase 1 of the Cowichan 2050 project, the specific task may be
considered finished. However, it is actually just finished the initial phase of scoping the work that
needs to be done to result in excellence in regional land use planning. To achieve this goal of
excellence, Cowichan 2050 will need to move into the next phase, to operationalize the work.

‘Referred to (upon completion):

0 Community Services (Island Savings Centre, Cowichan Lake Recreation, South Cowichan
Recreation, Arts & Culture, Public Safety, Facilities & Transit)

Corporate Services (Finance, Human Resources, Legislative Services, Information Technology,
Procurement)
Engineering Services (Environmental Services, Recycling & Waste Management, Water
Management)
Land Use Services (Community Planning, Development Services, Inspection & Enforcement,
Economic Development, Parks & Trails)
[1 Strategic Services
Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Beverly Suderman, MCIP, RPP Mike Tippett, MCIP, RPP
Senior Planner Manager

Ross Blackwell, MCIP, RPP, A.Ag.
General Manager
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Frem: Cathy Peters
Sent: June 26, 2018
Subject: present to UBCM; CST- Child Sex Trafficking in BC and how to stop it

Dear Mayaors, City Councils, Premier and Solicitor General of British Columbia,

F¥1, I have included a newspaper article from the Chilliwack Progress newspaper dated last Friday.
The article describes the pandemic of CST and a summary of my presentation to the Chilliwack Youth
and Children Committee.

ASK: please write z letter to the UBCM to support my presentation request for Whistler UBCM
Convention in September.

{ hope to hear from your communities. Our children are not safe in BC.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Mrs. Cathy Peters
BC anti-human trafficking educator, speaker, advocate

A MODERN EQUAL SOCIETY DOES NOT BUY AND SELL WOMEN AND CHILDREN.
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July 4, 2018

Clayton Postings
Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture

Ladysmith, BC

Dear Sir,

The Ladysmith Lions Club has made numerous contributions to the citizens and
facilities in Ladysmith since 1941. The development of playgrounds is amongst the
most sighificant. In 1954 the Club embarked on the development of a Little
League Baseball Park in the Market Square area. The park was officially opened
and turned over to the Town of Ladysmith on July,1957. The facility was referred
to as “Lions Playground No, the Market Square Recreation Park”. No official
name or sign was established. Since its dedication the park was most often
referred to as “the ball field at High Street”.

Recent review of the Club’s history revealed the omission of a sign naming the
Park. Consultation with the local baseball organization has produced a name and
a proposed sign to correct the 61 year shortcoming.

Together, the Ladysmith Lions Club and the Ladysmith Baseball Association,
propose the name “High Street Ball Park” to be placed on the building wall facing
High Street. The proposed sign text and design is attached.

Early approval would be greatly appreciated.

Ladysmith Lions Club

Ladysmith Baseball Asseciation

T
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P.O. Box 598
33 Roberts Street
Ladysmith, B.C. V9G 1A4

T 250 245 2112

F 250 245 2124

E info@ladysmithcofc.com
www.ladysmithcofc.com

July 4, 2018

Mayor and Council

Town of Ladysmith

PO Box 220 —
410 Esplanade Avenue

Ladysmith, BC V9G 1A2

Dear Sirs and Madames,

| am writing on behalf of the Board of Directors and staff of the Ladysmith Chamber of Commerce
to ask for your support on a project we are undertaking. We have identified the need and value
of creating and offering walking tours in the Town of Ladysmith and we feel that an organized ef-
fort which includes the Town, the Chamber and the Heritage Society will be the best way to ac-
complish this endeavour.

| attended a walking food tour in Tofino, BC and we were treated to a guided walking heritage
tour of the town as well as stops at many different local eateries. As | participated in this tour |
noted several things which would work well in the Town of Ladysmith, first, it would be very bene-
ficial to the restaurants and pubs we visited as some were out of the way and not otherwise on
our radar, second, the guided tour was run by a private company and clearly provided an eco-
nomic opportunity to several residents of the area in the form of a business opportunity. What
became very evident to me as | participated in the tour was that Ladysmith could and should be
taking advantage of our heritage and history with this same concept but we could add so much
more as we have so much more.

| have met with the President of the Ladysmith and District Historical Society, Mr. Ed Nicholson,
and have obtained his support for the project along with an offer to access much of the Society’s
archive information. | have also met with the museum manager, Lesley Moore, and she has
pledged her support for the project. As part of their support we have had discussions around uti-
lizing the summer student labour they obtain each year through the summer student grant pro-
gram.

My research has included a conference call with a company out of Vancouver called “On this
spot” Enterprises. They are a company who specialize in creating walking tours for
smartphones. They have created tours for the City of Nanaimo and my next step will be to go to
Nanaimo and participate in these tours to get a better feel for how they work on a “on the street”
level.
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I have attached a copy of the white paper supplied to me by On the Spot Enterprises so you can
obtain a better feel for what this project will look like. | envision a starting point of walking tours of
our heritage buildings in the downtown core but a further expansion of this project to include the
industrial and First Nation’s heritage along the waterfront and in other areas of the community.
Eventually, | would like to see the walking tours become hiking and kayaking tours as well utiliz-
ing our waterfront and trail systems. The use of this app would not be limited to tourists but could
also be a valuable resource for local residents as well.

My understanding is that funding is available through the Island Coastal Economic Trust for pro-
jects such as this. Our job will be to secure the 50% of the funding that ICET will not provide. |
am asking for the support of the Town of Ladysmith in the form of a letter of support for this pro-
ject and a possible contribution of any matching funding that may be available through the tour-
ism budget.

I would be happy to provide any further information you may require or answer any questions you
may have.

Respectfully submitted,

P

Tammy Leslie
President
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On This Spot App
White Paper

On This Spot Enterprises
Andrew Farris: Co-Founder and CEO

Christopher Reid: Co-Founder and CTO
Sean Edmunds: COO
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Executive Summary

This white paper outlines our proposal to build a series of walking tours in your community
based on then-and-now photos. The app is currently available for download for Apple and
Android devices. It is and will remain free to use and your community's tours and photographs
will be permanently accessible to anyone anywhere.

This paper lays out the shortcomings of existing history apps, which are largely focused on a
single city or rely on crowdsourced content, whereas On This Spot covers multiple cities and
carefully vets content for quality. It explains how local heritage, tourism and business
organizations can benefit from being included in the app.

The process we would enact to create content for your community is explained, along with a
choice of four coverage plans based on the number of historic photos recreated. Budget
breakdowns for the four coverage plans are given, which range from $7,000 to $22,000.
Measures to show how funding institutions can monitor the value of their investment are
included, along with explanations of On This Spot's technical, institutional and financial
sustainability.

Our Product and Philosophy

On This Spot takes people on guided walking tours through the history that surrounds them. At
each stop on their journey users will find themselves standing in the footprints of a
photographer who took a historic photograph. They can view a then-and-now photo
comparison, use our built-in camera to create their own then-and-now content, and discover
how local history ties into the broader human experience.

On This Spot aims to make history engaging, educational, and accessible to the widest possible
audience. We emphasize a clean and intuitive interface that presents local history in
well-defined tiers, which provides unparalleled depth without overwhelming users.

On This Spot’s unique then-and-now photos ignite people’s curiosity, while thoughtful and
comprehensive walking tours examine a practically limitless range of historical themes. The
app's built-in camera encourages users to go out and recreate the photos on their own, which
can be shared on social media.
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Our Solution: By uniting all partners on a single platform, the ability to promote history
across a region dramatically increases. Every new city brings in a new potential audience and
our platform allows users to access content from other partner cities.

2. User engagement issues

Local marketing efforts are usually left to the funding institutions and are often limited to a
initial press release and a few local news articles. Our research has found that user engagement
quickly dissipates if no further marketing efforts follow the initial launch and no new content is
added.

Our Solution: Launch of a city's content will be accompanied by our own media campaign,
marketing campaign for the 'Nearby' business subscription service, creation of brochures, a
web page, and a city-specific section of the online store. Our service creates hundreds of
striking then-and-now photos that generate engaging news coverage. Our web pages feature a
selection of the best then-and-now photos. These pages generate substantial web traffic and
draw a continuous stream of visitors directed to download the app. For example, our
Vancouver page has been shared on Facebook over 12,000 times. The online store means
individuals and businesses can buy and display quality art based upon the app's photography
system.

3. App development requires continued maintenance

The Android and iOS operating systems are constantly updated which can suddenly render an
app inoperable. Avoiding this requires continual monitoring and updating which can be
expensive and challenging for projects funded by one-time grants. For example, the London
StreetMuseum app once had an augmented reality feature. Firmware updates caused this
feature to crash frequently, so StreetMuseum removed it rather than try to resolve the issue.
This negatively affected the user experience.

Our Solution: We have projected ongoing maintenance cost expectations and have allocated
a portion of initial funding requirements to cover these efforts for at least 36 months. In
addition, revenues generated from our 'Nearby' subscriber base will further support these

efforts and ensure our platform runs smoothly for years to come.

4. Lack of interactivity
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new features to incorporate within the app, we will only add them if they advance this core
aim.

While our approaches to these problems seem relatively straightforward, no other app
developers appear to have tried them together. This makes us confident that On This Spot is
well positioned to capture a significant portion of the rapidly growing market for
smartphone-based experiential history.

Coverage Explained

Coverage for an On This Spot partner city is based on the number of historic photo
opportunities, calculated in multiples of 100. For each 100 photos we reshoot, we propose to
create one to three walking tours totaling around 20 stops (or 'one full tour') and 5,000 to 8,000
words of text.

Why the extra photos?

This practice leaves a large majority of the photo opportunities in the app unaffiliated with any
tour. There are three key reasons why we create extra photos:

1. Greater tour creation flexibility. This method allows us to pick historical photos that
match the narrative theme of a particular tour while maintaining a logical walking route.

2. Increase in repeat usage. This approach allows users a huge number of opportunities to
recreate historic photos that are unaffiliated with a particular tour. We have found that
this significantly increases usage of our platform. For example, over 65% of our users are
returning to experience other tours or to see what other photo opportunities surround
them.

3. Increased sponsorship opportunities - our platform allows for local businesses and
other heritage organizations to be featured despite not being incorporated into a
particular tour. This allows for many benefits such as increased foot traffic to their

business, increased community presence and awareness.

Tour Design
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enefits

On This Spot Partnership |

Our research has shown there are many benefits to partnering with On This Spot—particularly
for heritage and tourism erganizations, educators, and local businesses.

Most businesses and organizations want to increase their presence among millennials and

interactive history tours can significantly help these efforts. Qur user hase is tilted towards
millennials with 60% of our user base being under the age of 35. On This Spot provides the
perfect platform for engaging the millennial generation with local history.

On This Spot helps cities position themselves as destinations for education, entertainment, and
cultural enrichment for tourists. For example, 81% of U.S. tourists are considered ‘cultural
tourists” and over a third of these tourists agree that specific arts, cultural or heritage events
significantly influenced their choice of destination.

On This Spot is a powerful tool for educators. Teachers can incorporate On This Spot material
into their curriculum, for instance, as has already occurred with Grade 2 classes in Strathmore
and an undergraduate course at the University of Victoria. It further encourages students to
actively go about learning local history on their own time which helps them identity with their
city.

Using our 'Nearby' feature, we have found that local businesses are very receptive to partnering
with On This Spot. Not only do local businesses see increased foot traffic from our history
tours, but they also have the opportunity to promote their business through sponsorships or
by subscribing to be featured on our platform.

For Q2 2018, we are developing a system where local businesses can subscribe to our ‘Nearby'
feature. We would waive this fee for institutions that provide initial funding. In addition
heritage organizations can promote admission packages within our platform that encourage
users to purchase admission to their museum directly through the app.

In addition to free permanent listing for funding institutions in the 'Nearby' feature, we will
credit funding institutions in a mutually agreed upon manner. Currently we include a logo and
link to a sponsor's website on each city page. We can list prominent funding institutions as
sponsors for specific tours, and we can design tours to feature specific institutions.

11
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Factors Potentially impacting the Budget
Waived Fees for Historic Photographs

With all previous partner cities, we have been able to recreate digital versions of the images
free of charge while listing the archival record for each image and crediting the source
institution. Our budget assumes we will be able to access a collection of historic photos at little
to no cost. If this is not feasible, then we will need to consider archival usage fees as an
additional cost of development.

Digitized Archival Collections

Our proposals assume the historic photos we have access to are already digitized. In the case of
Strathmore, Alberta, most of the photo collections used were not digitized. Sorting these
photos by hand is time consuming, and may add 1-3 days to the photo research phase of the
project.

Using Existing Walking Tour Content

The above timetable assumes that On This Spot staff will handle the research and writing of the
walking tours from start to finish. This has been the case in all our partner cities to date.
However, many cities have walking tour content that may be suitable for our platform. In this
case, it would reduce the time and cost of creating tours. All existing tour content will have to

be modified to some degree, and calculating exactly how much we can shave off our budget
depends on:

e Sufficient historic photos exist of the material featured in the tour.
e The walking tour content is of sufficient depth (300-500 words per stop)
® How closely the writing dovetails with our style of thematic history
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Monitoring and Evaluation

Following launch, evaluating the returns of On This Spot coverage for funding organizations and
other beneficiaries can be done with analytics and data gathering.

Analytics

Using Google Analytics, we have access an enormous amount of anonymized data on how users
interact with the app. These include:

e User Behaviour: We are able to track the proportion of users that are new vs returning.
Returning users are fundamental to the success of any application platform.

e User Demographics: We are able to track geographic location, gender, and age of our
user base.

e User Location: We are able to track the average amount of time users spend in the app,
where they are physically located when they are using it, and which tours they find most
engaging.

This data can be incredibly useful for sponsors as they can track what audiences are taking the
tours, what they are viewing, and their travel habits. Data is available in real-time, and we
currently compile quarterly reports on this data for interested sponsors.

Data Gathering and Mailing Lists

We are in the final stages of launching a new feature that will offer users the option of logging
into On This Spot through their Facebook accounts.

Through this feature, users will be able to subscribe to our mailing list allowing us to create a
custom marketing lists for promotional offers or events put on by our sponsors. Funding
institutions will have access to both this data and our marketing lists upon request.
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Sustainability

Many organizations have funded history app platforms across North America, and we have
spoken to a number who have had disappointing experiences. In many of these cases a lack of
user engagement results in a rapidly declining usage rate which effectively strands an
organization's investment in an unused software relic. We want to emphasize that this will not
occur with On This Spot. Our app will continue to draw users over the long-term, providing an
ongoing return on investment to funding institutions.

On This Spot's technical sustainability is ensured by our focus on history and simplicity of
design. Because historic photos and their map coordinates never really change, they will need
minimal upkeep to ensure they are updated. The tours will need only incremental updates
many years after publishing—if they ever need updating at all. The app's simple yet
groundbreaking approach to storytelling will not go out of style. Other apps that rely on rapidly
evolving AR or VR technologies will almost certainly require massive overhauls in order to avoid
being rendered obsolete by technological advancement.

On This Spot's institutional sustainability is ensured by our passion for developing this concept
in the long term and the massive continued interest we have received. This project is borne out
of our fierce personal passion for history, and we are fully invested in pushing this concept as
far as it can go. We are encouraged by the enormous interest we have received. Not only is our
storytelling model viable in virtually every community in North America, but there is significant
consumer demand that isn't being met by any competitor.

On This Spot's financial sustainability is ensured by our low operating costs and the great
monetary potential in new features in development. While the upfront cost of developing
coverage may be relatively high, ongoing operating costs are very low. We are very excited to
unveil the 'Nearby' feature in 2018, as it will provide us with a constant revenue stream from
local businesses, providing financial sustainability far into the future.
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